

# Registration of a Charge

**CALEDONIA TLG BIDCO LIMITED** Company Name:

Company Number: 10246125

Received for filing in Electronic Format on the: 19/12/2022

# **Details of Charge**

Date of creation: 16/12/2022

Charge code: 1024 6125 0002

Persons entitled: HSBC CORPORATE TRUSTEE COMPANY (UK) LIMITED AS SECURITY

**TRUSTEE** 

Brief description:

Contains fixed charge(s).

Contains floating charge(s) (floating charge covers all the property or

undertaking of the company).

Contains negative pledge.

## **Authentication of Form**

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

# Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: I CERTIFY THAT SAVE FOR MATERIAL REDACTED PURSUANT

> TO S. 859G OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT DELIVERED AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL

INSTRUMENT.

Certified by: **XHENI BUSHI** 



# CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 10246125

Charge code: 1024 6125 0002

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 16th December 2022 and created by CALEDONIA TLG BIDCO LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 19th December 2022.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 21st December 2022

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006







Dated 16 December

2022

- (1) THE COMPANIES NAMED IN SCHEDULE 1 OF THIS DEED (as Chargors)
- (2) HSBC CORPORATE TRUSTEE
  COMPANY (UK) LIMITED
  (as Security Trustee)

SUPPLEMENTAL DEBENTURE

CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro Olswang LLP

Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6AF

T +44(0)20 7367 3000 F +44(0)20 7367 2000

# **Table of Contents**

1.	Definitions and Interpretation	l
2.	Covenant to Pay and Guarantee	8
3.	Fixed Security	8
4.	Floating Charge	10
5.	Perfection of Security	11
6.	Further Assurance	14
7.	General Undertakings	15
8.	Enforcement of Security	21
9.	Extension and Variation of the LPA	22
10.	Appointment of Receiver and Administrator	22
11.	Powers of Receiver	23
12.	Discretions and Delegation	25
13.	Power of Attorney	26
14.	Protection of Purchasers	26
15.	Application of Proceeds	27
16.	No Liability as Mortgagee in Possession	28
17.	Set Off	28
18.	The Security Trustee as Trustee	29
19.	Effectiveness of Security	29
20.	Indemnities	31
21.	Assignment	32
22.	Partial Invalidity	32
23.	Additional Chargors	32
24.	Remedies and Waivers	32
25.	Notices	32
26.	Contractual Recognition of Bail-In	32
27.	Counterparts	33
28.	Applicable Law and Jurisdiction	33
29.	Covenant to Release	33
30.	Prevailing Agreement	33

Schedule 1	35
The Chargors	35
Schedule 2	39
Real Property	39
Part 1 – Registered Land	39
Part 2 – Unregistered Land	43
Schedule 3	44
Insurance Policies	44
Schedule 4	45
Specified Intellectual Property	45
Schedule 5	46
Specified Securities	46
Schedule 6	47
Specified Contracts	47
Schedule 7	48
Form of Notice of Charge- Insurance Policies/Insurances	48
Part 1- Form of Notice	48
Part 2- Form of Acknowledgement	49
Schedule 8	50
Form of Notice of Assignment - Specified Contracts and Hedging Agreement	50
Part 1 - Form of Notice	50
Part 2 – Form of Acknowledgement	52
Schedule 9	53
Form of Notice of Charge- Accounts not with the Security Trustee	53
Part 1 -Form of Notice	53
Part 2 - Form of Acknowledgement	
Schedule 10	56
Form of Accession Deed	56
1. Definitions and Interpretation	56
2. Accession by the Additional Chargor to the Debenture	56
<ol> <li>Fixed Security</li> <li>Floating Charge</li> </ol>	
5 Further Advances	59

6. Exclusion of Assets fi	rom Security	59
8. Further Assurance		60
9. Notices		6
11. Governing Law		61
Schedule 1		62
Real Property		62
Schedule 2		63
Insurance Policies		63
Schedule 3		64
Specified Intellectual Property		64
Schedule 4		65
Specified Securities		
Schedule 5		66
Specified Contracts		66

THIS DEED is made on the 16 December 2022

#### **BETWEEN:**

- (1) **THE COMPANIES** whose respective names and numbers appear in Schedule 1 (*The Chargors*) (collectively the "**Chargors**" and each an "**Chargor**"); and
- (2) **HSBC CORPORATE TRUSTEE COMPANY (UK) LIMITED** as security trustee for the Secured Parties (as defined below) on the terms and conditions set out in this Deed and in the Facilities Agreement (as defined below) (in such capacity, the "**Security Trustee**").

#### WHEREAS:

- (A) Pursuant to (i) the Original Debenture (as defined below); (ii) the Accession Deeds executed prior to the date of this Deed and (iii) the Supplemental Legal Mortgages, the Chargors created security over all of their assets and undertaking in favour of the Security Trustee as continuing security for the payment and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities.
- (B) This Deed is supplemental to the Original Debenture.
- (C) Each Chargor enters into this Deed in connection with the a facilities agreement (the "Facilities Agreement") dated 8 August 2016 and made between, amongst others, (1) Caledonia TLG Midco Limited as the parent and as guarantor (the "Parent"), (2) Caledonia TLG Bidco Limited as the borrower and as guarantor (the "Company") (3) the financial institutions listed in Part III of Schedule 1 to the Facilities Agreement as Mandated Lead Arrangers, (4) the financial institutions listed in Part II of Schedule 1 to the Facilities Agreement as Lenders, (5) HSBC Bank plc as Agent of the Finance Parties and (6) the Security Trustee as variously amended and amended and restated from time to time and as amended and restated on the 2022 Effective Date (the "Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement").
- (D) The Chargors wish to grant security over the Security Assets in respect of their obligations to the Lenders as amended by the 2022 Amendment and Restatement Agreement.
- (E) The board of directors (the "**Board**") of each Chargor is satisfied that the giving of the security contained or provided for in this Deed is in the interests of that Chargor and each Board has passed a resolution to that effect.

#### **NOW IT IS AGREED** as follows:

## 1. Definitions and Interpretation

#### Specific Definitions

- 1.1 Terms defined in the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement shall, unless otherwise defined in this Deed, have the same meanings when used in this Deed and in addition the following words and expressions shall have the following meanings:
  - **"2019 Supplemental Legal Mortgage"** means a supplemental legal mortgage over land dated 14 June 2019 between Butcombe Brewery Limited as Chargor and Security Trustee;
  - "2021 Supplemental Legal Mortgages" means the following supplemental legal mortgage over land:
  - (a) dated 8 January 2021;
  - (b) 9 April 2021; and
  - (c) 21 May 2021,

each between Butcombe Brewery Limited as Chargor and Security Trustee;

- "2022 Supplemental Legal Mortgage" means a supplemental legal mortgage over land dated 26 May 2022 between Butcombe Brewery Limited as Chargor and Security Trustee;
- "2022 Amendment and Restatement Agreement" means an amendment and restatement deed to the Facilities Agreement entered into on or about the date of this Deed between, among others, the Parent, the Obligors, the Agent and the Security Trustee;
- "2022 Effective Date" has the mining given to that term in the 2022 Amendment and Restatement Agreement;
- "Accession Deed": means a deed of accession and charge substantially in the form of Schedule 10 (Form of Accession Deed);
- "Additional Chargor": means a company which executes an Accession Deed in accordance with Clause 23 (Additional Chargors);
- "Article 55 BRRD": Article 55 of Directive 2014/59/EU establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms;
- "Bail-In Action": the exercise of any Write-down and Conversion Powers;

## "Bail-In Legislation":

- (a) in relation to an EEA Member Country which has implemented, or which at any time implements, Article 55 BRRD, the relevant implementing law or regulation as described in the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule from time to time;
- (b) in relation to the United Kingdom, the UK Bail-In Legislation; and
- (c) in relation to any state other than such an EEA Member Country and the United Kingdom, any analogous law or regulation from time to time which requires contractual recognition of any Write-down and Conversion Powers contained in that law or regulation;
- "Chargors": means the Chargors listed in Schedule 1 (*The Chargors*) and each Additional Chargor with effect from its accession, and "Chargor" means any of them;
- "**Debt Proceeds**": any proceeds of any book debts and other debts or monetary claims (including any chose in action which may give rise to a monetary claim) owing to any Chargor (including, without limitation, any sums of money received by any Chargor from any of the assets charged under Clause 3.2.7 (*Book debts*) and/or Clause 3.2.8 (*Bank accounts and deposits*));
- "Declared Default": has the meaning given to that term in the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement; "Default": has the meaning given to that term in the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement;
- "**Delegate**": any person appointed by the Security Trustee or any Receiver pursuant to Clause 12.2 to 12.4 (*Delegation*) and any person appointed as attorney of the Security Trustee and/or any Receiver or Delegate;
- "EEA Member Country": any member state of the European Union, Iceland, Liechtenstein and Norway;
- "EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule": the document described as such and published by the Loan Market Association (or any successor person) from time to time;

- "Event of Default": has the meaning given to that term in the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement;
- "Excluded Properties": The Pelican Inn Car Park, 10 South Parade, Chew Magna, Bristol registered at HM Land Registry under title number AV222475;
- "Exclusion": in respect of the leasehold land held by a Chargor which precludes absolutely or conditionally (including requiring the consent of any third party) the creation of any charge or other Security over that asset without the landlord's consent, the requirement to obtain the landlord 's consent;
- "Expenses": all costs (including legal fees), charges, expenses and damages sustained or properly incurred by the Security Trustee or any Receiver or Delegate at any time in connection with the Security Assets or the Secured Liabilities or in taking, holding or perfecting this Deed or in protecting, preserving, defending or enforcing the security constituted by this Deed and/or in exercising any rights, powers or remedies provided by or pursuant to this Deed (including any right or power to make payments on behalf of any Chargor under the terms of this Deed) or by law in each case on a full indemnity basis;
- "Finance Documents": has the meaning given to that term in the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement;
- "Group": has the meaning given to that term in the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement;
- "Insurances": the Insurance Policies and the proceeds of them and all other contracts and policies of insurance or assurance (including, without limitation, life policies and the proceeds of them) from time to time taken out by or for the benefit of any Chargor or (to the extent of its interest) in which any Chargor from time to time has an interest, together with all bonuses and other moneys, benefits and advantages that may become payable or accrue under them or under any substituted policy;

## "Intellectual Property":

- (a) any patents, trade-marks, service marks, designs, business names, domain names, copyrights, design rights, moral rights, inventions, confidential information, know-how and other intellectual property rights and interests, whether registered or unregistered;
- (b) the benefit of all applications and rights to use such assets of each member of the Group; and
- (c) all physical material in which any intellectual property might be incorporated,

including, without limitation, any of the same specified in Schedule 4 (*Specified Intellectual Property*) of this Deed and/or Schedule 3 (*Specified Intellectual Property*) of any Accession Deed;

"Insurance Policies": each of the insurance policies of life insurance or life assurance from time to time taken out by or for the benefit of any Chargor or assigned to any Chargor or (to the extent of its interest) in which any Chargor from time to time has an interest in respect of the death or disability or critical illness of the persons specified in Schedule 3 (*Insurance Policies*) of this Deed and/or Schedule 2 (*Insurance Policies*) of any Accession Deed;

"LPA": the Law of Property Act 1925;

"Mortgaged Property": any freehold, commonhold or leasehold property (other than leasehold property with a lease for a remaining term of less than 15 years) the subject of the security constituted by this Deed and references to any "Mortgaged Property" shall include references to the whole or any part or parts of it;

- "Planning Acts": all legislation from time to time regulating the development, use, safety and control of property including, without limitation, the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990, the Planning (Consequential Provisions) Act 1990, the Planning and Compensation Act 1991 and the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and any other instrument, plan, regulation, permission or direction made or issued under any such legislation;
- "Premises": all buildings and erections from time to time situated on or forming part of any Mortgaged Property;
- "Original Debenture" means a debenture dated 8 August 2016 and entered into between the Parent and the Company as chargors and the Security Trustee as supplemented by the Accession Deeds and Supplemental Legal Mortgages;.
- "Receiver": a receiver, receiver and manager or (if permitted by law) administrative receiver of the whole or any part or parts of the Security Assets;
- "Related Rights": in relation to the Securities, all dividends, interest, benefits, property, rights, accretions, moneys, advantages, credits, rebates, refunds (including rebates and refunds in respect of any tax, duties, imposts or charges) and other distributions paid or payable in respect of the Securities, whether by way of bonus, capitalisation, conversion, preference, option, substitution, exchange, redemption or otherwise;
- "Resolution Authority": any body which has authority to exercise any Write-down and Conversion Powers;
- "Satisfied": in relation to an Exclusion, the granting of consent by the relevant landlord;
- "Secured Liabilities": all present and future indebtedness, monies, obligations and liabilities of each Borrower and each other Obligor to the Secured Parties under the Finance Documents (including this Deed), in whatever currency denominated, whether actual or contingent and whether owed jointly or severally or as principal or as surety or in some other capacity, including any liability in respect of any further advances made under the Finance Documents, together with all Expenses and all interest under Clause 2.2 (*Interest*);
- "Secured Parties": has the meaning given to that term in the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement;
- "Securities": all stocks, shares, loan notes, bonds, certificates of deposit, depository receipts, loan capital indebtedness, debentures or other securities from time to time legally or beneficially owned by or on behalf of any Chargor, including, without limitation, any of the same specified in Schedule 5 (*Specified Securities*) of this Deed and/or Schedule 4 (*Specified Securities*) of any Accession Deed, together with all property and rights of any Chargor in respect of any account held by or for that Chargor as participant, or as beneficiary of a nominee or trustee participant, with any clearance or settlement system or depository or custodian or sub-custodian or broker in the United Kingdom or elsewhere;
- "Security Assets": all the assets of each Chargor which from time to time are the subject of any security created or expressed to be created in favour of the Security Trustee by or pursuant to this Deed (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any assets that are the subject of an Exclusion);
- "Security": means a mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other security interest securing any obligation of any person or any other agreement or arrangement having a similar effect;
- "Specified Contracts": each of the contracts specified in Schedule 6 (*Specified Contracts*) of this Deed and/or Schedule 5 (*Specified Contracts*) of any Accession Deed;

"Supplemental Legal Mortgages" means 2019 Supplemental Legal Mortgage, 2021 Supplemental Legal Mortgages and 2022 Supplemental Legal Mortgage;

"UK Bail-In Legislation": Part I of the United Kingdom Banking Act 2009 and any other law or regulation applicable in the United Kingdom relating to the resolution of unsound or failing banks, investment firms or other financial institutions or their affiliates (otherwise than through liquidation, administration or other insolvency proceedings); and

#### "Write-down and Conversion Powers":

- (a) in relation to any Bail-In Legislation described in the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule from time to time, the powers described as such in relation to that Bail-In Legislation in the EU Bail-In Legislation Schedule;
- (b) in relation to the UK Bail-In Legislation:
  - (i) any powers under that UK Bail-In Legislation to cancel, transfer or dilute shares issued by a person that is a bank or investment firm or other financial institution or affiliate of a bank, investment firm or other financial institution, to cancel, reduce, modify or change the form of a liability of such a person or any contract or instrument under which that liability arises, to convert all or part of that liability into shares, securities or obligations of that person or any other person, to provide that any such contract or instrument is to have effect as if a right had been exercised under it or to suspend any obligation in respect of that liability or any of the powers under that UK Bail-In Legislation that are related to or ancillary to any of those powers; and
- (c) in relation to any other applicable Bail-In Legislation:
  - (i) any powers under that Bail-In Legislation to cancel, transfer or dilute shares issued by a person that is a bank or investment firm or other financial institution or affiliate of a bank, investment firm or other financial institution, to cancel, reduce, modify or change the form of a liability of such a person or any contract or instrument under which that liability arises, to convert all or part of that liability into shares, securities or obligations of that person or any other person, to provide that any such contract or instrument is to have effect as if a right had been exercised under it or to suspend any obligation in respect of that liability or any of the powers under that Bail-In Legislation that are related to or ancillary to any of those powers; and

any similar or analogous powers under that Bail-In Legislation.

#### **General Definitions**

- 1.2 Any reference in this Deed to:
  - 1.2.1 the "Security Trustee", a "Chargor", an "Additional Chargor", a "Borrower", a "Guarantor", an "Obligor", "Finance Parties" or the "Secured Parties" or any other person shall be construed so as to include its or their successors in title, or permitted transferees and permitted assigns, whether immediate or derivative, and, in the case of the Security Trustee, shall include any person for the time being appointed as Security Trustee or as an additional Security Trustee for the purpose of, and in accordance with, the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement;
  - 1.2.2 the "assets" of any person shall include the undertaking, property, revenues, rights and assets (present and future) of whatsoever nature of such person;

- 1.2.3 a "Clause" or a "Schedule" is, unless otherwise provided, a reference to a Clause or a Schedule of this Deed; and
- 1.2.4 "indebtedness" includes any obligation (whether incurred as principal or as surety) for the payment or repayment of money, whether present or future, actual or contingent;
- 1.2.5 a "person" includes any individual, firm, company, corporation, government, state or agency of a state or any association, trust, joint venture, consortium or partnership (whether or not having separate legal personality);
- 1.2.6 a "regulation" includes any regulation, rule, official directive, request or guideline (whether or not having the force of law) of any governmental, intergovernmental or supranational body, agency, department or of any regulatory, self-regulatory or other authority or organisation;
- 1.2.7 any reference to a provision of law is a reference to that provision as amended or reenacted;
- 1.2.8 a reference to any statutory provision includes any equivalent or analogous statutory provision under the laws of any other Relevant Jurisdiction;
- 1.2.9 any reference to a "regulation" includes any regulation, rule, official directive, request or guideline (whether or not having the force of law) of any governmental, intergovernmental or supranational body, agency, department or any regulatory, self-regulatory or other authority or organisation; and
- 1.2.10 any statutory provision includes any equivalent or analogous statutory provision under the laws of any other applicable jurisdiction.

#### Construction

- 1.3 Any reference in this Deed to a mortgage, charge or assignment of any asset shall be construed so as to include:
  - 1.3.1 the benefit of any covenants for title given or entered into by any predecessor in title of any Chargor in respect of that asset and all other rights, benefits, claims, contracts, warranties, remedies, security or indemnities in respect of that asset;
  - 1.3.2 the proceeds of sale of any part of that asset and any other moneys paid or payable in respect of or in connection with that asset; and
  - 1.3.3 in respect of any Mortgaged Property, all Premises and all fixtures and fittings (including trade fixtures and fittings and tenants' fixtures and fittings) from time to time in or on that Mortgaged Property.
- 1.4 It is intended that this document shall take effect as and be a deed of each Chargor notwithstanding the fact that the Security Trustee may not execute this document as a deed.
- 1.5 Each term in any Finance Document is, to the extent not set out in or otherwise incorporated into this Deed, deemed to be incorporated into this Deed insofar as is necessary to comply with section 2 of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989 but, except where stated otherwise, if there is any conflict between that incorporated term and any other term of this Deed that other term shall prevail.
- 1.6 Any reference in this Deed to any Finance Document or any other agreement or other document shall be construed as a reference to that Finance Document or that other agreement or document as the same may have been, or may from time to time be, restated, varied, amended, supplemented, substituted, novated or assigned, whether or not as a result of any of the same:

- 1.6.1 there is an increase or decrease in any facility made available under that Finance Document or other agreement or document or an increase or decrease in the period for which any facility is available or in which it is repayable;
- any additional, further or substituted facility to or for such facility is provided;
- 1.6.3 any rate of interest, commission or fees or relevant purpose is changed;
- 1.6.4 the identity of the parties is changed;
- 1.6.5 the identity of the providers of any security is changed;
- 1.6.6 there is an increased or additional liability on the part of any person; or
- 1.6.7 a new agreement is effectively created or deemed to be created.
- 1.7 Any reference in this Deed to "**this Deed**" shall be deemed to be a reference to this Deed as a whole and not limited to the particular Clause, Schedule or provision in which the relevant reference appears and to this Deed as the same may from time to time be restated, varied, amended, supplemented, substituted, novated or assigned.
- 1.8 References in this Deed to laws, statutes or statutory provisions shall be construed as referring to such laws, statutes or statutory provisions as respectively replaced, amended, extended, consolidated or re-enacted from time to time and shall include any order, regulation, instrument or other subordinate legislation made under the relevant law, statute or statutory provision.
- 1.9 The table of contents and headings in this Deed are inserted for convenience only and have no legal effect.
- 1.10 Unless the context otherwise requires, words denoting the singular number only shall include the plural and vice versa.
- 1.11 Any change in the constitution of any of the parties to this Deed or their absorption of or amalgamation with any other person or the acquisition of all or part of their undertaking by any other person shall not in any way prejudice or affect their rights under this Deed.
- 1.12 Where any provision of this Deed is stated to include one or more things, that shall be by way of example or for the avoidance of doubt only and shall not limit the generality of that provision.

#### Supplemental Debenture

- 1.13 Each Chargor acknowledges and accepts that this Deed is supplemental and in addition to the Original Debenture and the Supplemental Legal Mortgages and does not affect the security created thereunder.
- 1.14 All references in this Deed to "full title guarantee" shall be qualified by reference to the Original Debenture and Supplemental Legal Mortgages.
- 1.15 The satisfaction of any obligation of a Chargor under the Original Debenture shall, where it is also contained in this deed, be deemed to satisfy the same obligation of that Chargor under this deed, unless that Chargor is otherwise notified by the Security Trustee in writing and is thereafter provided with a reasonable opportunity to satisfy such obligation in accordance with this deed.
- 1.16 Without prejudice to the generality of Clauses 1.13 to 1.15:
  - 1.16.1 any reference to a "first" fixed charge, a "first" floating charge or an assignment is qualified by and subject to the Security created by the Original Debenture in respect of the relevant Security Assets;

- 1.16.2 any reference to Security being created by this deed "with full title guarantee" is qualified by and subject to the Security created by the Original Debenture in respect of the relevant Security Assets;
- 1.16.3 the covenants of each Chargor contained in clauses 7.1 (*Negative Pledge*) and 7.2 (*Restriction on Disposals*) are qualified by and subject to the Security created by the Original Debenture in respect of the Security Assets; and
- 1.16.4 the undertakings made and deemed to be made in clause 7 (*General Undertakings*) are qualified by and subject to the Security created by, and the provisions of, the Original Debenture,

unless and to the extent that, notwithstanding the agreement set out in clause 1.13, the relevant Security created by, or a relevant provision of, the Original Debenture is or becomes ineffective.

## Third Party Rights

1.17 Nothing in this Deed is intended to confer on any person any right to enforce or enjoy the benefit of any provision of this Deed which that person would not have had but for the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.

## 2. Covenant to Pay and Guarantee

#### Covenant to Pay

2.1 Each Chargor covenants with the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) that it will pay, perform and discharge the Secured Liabilities as and when the same fall due for payment, performance or discharge in accordance with the terms of the Finance Documents.

#### Interest

2.2 Each Chargor covenants with the Security Trustee to pay interest on any amounts due under Clause 2.1 (*Covenant to Pay*) from day to day until full discharge (whether before or after judgment, liquidation, winding-up or administration of that Chargor) at the rate and in the manner specified in the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement, provided that, in the case of any Expense, such interest shall accrue and be payable as from the date on which the relevant Expense was due and payable pursuant to the terms of the Finance Documents.

## 3. Fixed Security

## Charges

- 3.1 Each Chargor, as security for the payment, performance and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, charges in favour of the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) by way of a first legal mortgage all of that Chargor's right, title and interest in and to the freehold, commonhold and leasehold property (other than leasehold property with a lease for a remaining term of less than 15 years) now vested in it (including, but not limited to, the freehold, commonhold and leasehold property (if any) specified in Schedule 2 (*Real Property*)) (other than any subject to an Exclusion unless and until the same is satisfied) other than the Excluded Properties.
- 3.2 Each Chargor, as security for the payment, performance and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, charges in favour of the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) by way of first fixed charge all of that Chargor's right, title and interest in and to the following assets, both present and future:

- 3.2.1 Other real property- all estates or interests in any freehold, commonhold or leasehold property (other than (i) such property effectively mortgaged under Clause 3.1 above; (ii) any property subject to an Exclusion unless and until the same is satisfied, (iii) leasehold property with a lease for a remaining term of less than 15 years and (iv) any Excluded Properties);
- 3.2.2 **Licences on land-** all licences held by it to enter upon or use land and/or to carry on the business carried on upon that land and all agreements relating to land to which it is a party or otherwise entitled;
- 3.2.3 **Rights as tenant** where any Mortgaged Property is leasehold property, any right or interest arising by virtue of any enfranchising legislation (including, but not limited to, the Leasehold Reform Act 1967 and the Leasehold Reform Housing and Urban Development Act 1993 but excluding Part II of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954) which confers upon a tenant of property whether individually or collectively with other tenants of that or other properties the right to acquire a new lease of that property or to acquire, or require the acquisition by a nominee of, the freehold or any intermediate reversionary interest in that property;
- 3.2.4 **Rental income** any amounts owing to it by way of rent, licence fee, service charge, dilapidations, ground rent and/or rent charge in respect of any Mortgaged Property or Premises;
- 3.2.5 *Fixed or other plant and machinery* all fixed and other plant and machinery, computers, vehicles, office equipment and other chattels in its ownership or possession (but excluding any of those items to the extent that they are part of its stock in trade);
- 3.2.6 *Insurances* all Insurances, including all claims, the proceeds of all claims and all returns of premium in connection with Insurances;
- 3.2.7 **Book debts** all book debts and all other debts or monetary claims (including all chases in action which may give rise to a debt or monetary claim), all proceeds thereof and, in each case, any cheque, bill, note, negotiable instrument or other document representing the same;
- 3.2.8 **Bank accounts and deposits** all moneys from time to time deposited in or standing to the credit of any bank account with the Security Trustee or any other bank or financial institution (including, without limitation, any rent deposit given to secure liabilities in relation to land and any retention or similar sum arising out of a construction contract or any other contract (and, in each case, any cheque, bill, note, negotiable instrument or other document representing the same)), together with all moneys from time to time deposited in or standing to the credit of any Holding Account and/or Mandatory Prepayment Account.
- 3.2.9 **Securities** all Securities and their Related Rights;
- 3.2.10 Goodwill and uncalled capital- all of its goodwill and uncalled capital;
- 3.2.11 *Intellectual property* all Intellectual Property;
- 3.2.12 **Business licences** all licences, consents and authorisations (statutory or otherwise) held by it in connection with its business or the use of any Security Asset and the right to recover and receive all compensation which may be payable in respect of them;
- 3.2.13 **Contracts** each of the Specified Contracts, together with each Hedging Agreement (to the extent not otherwise validly and effectively assigned pursuant to Clause 3.3 (Assignment) below): and

- (a) all contracts, guarantees, appointments, warranties and other documents to which it is a party or in its favour or of which it has the benefit relating to any letting, development, sale, purchase or the operation of any Mortgaged Property or Premises;
- (b) all agreements entered into by it or of which it has the benefit under which credit of any amount is provided to any person;
- (c) all contracts for the supply of goods and/or services by or to it or of which it has the benefit (including, without limitation, any contracts of hire or lease of chattels); and
- (d) any currency or interest swap or any other interest or currency protection, hedging or financial futures transaction or arrangement entered into by it or of which it has the benefit (whether entered into with any of the Finance Parties or any other person),

including, in each case, but without limitation, the right to demand and receive all moneys whatsoever payable to or for its benefit under or arising from any of them, all remedies provided for in any of them or available at law or in equity in relation to any of them, the right to compel performance of any of them and all other rights, interests and benefits whatsoever accruing to or for its benefit arising from any of them.

## Assignment

3.3 Each Chargor, as security for the payment, performance and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, assigns to the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) absolutely by way of a first legal assignment all of that Chargor's right, title and interest in and to each of the Specified Contracts, together with each Hedging Agreement.

## 4. Floating Charge

## Creation of Floating Charge

- 4.1 Each Chargor, as security for the payment, performance and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, charges in favour of the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) by way of a first floating charge all of that Chargor's undertaking and all its other property, assets and rights whatsoever, all the stock in trade of that Chargor and the property, assets and rights not otherwise validly and effectively mortgaged, charged or assigned (whether at law or in equity) by way of fixed security pursuant to Clause 3 (*Fixed Security*).
- 4.2 The provisions of paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 shall apply to the floating charge created pursuant to Clause 4.1 (*Creation of Floating Charge*) above.

## Conversion by Notice

- 4.3 Subject to clause 4.5 (*Moratorium*), the Security Trustee may by notice in writing at any time to any Chargor convert the floating charge created by that Chargor pursuant to Clause 4.1 (*Creation of Floating Charge*) above with immediate effect into a fixed charge (either generally or specifically) as regards any assets of that Chargor specified in the notice if:
  - 4.3.1 an Event of Default has occurred and while the same is continuing; or
  - 4.3.2 the Security Trustee reasonably considers (based on reasonable evidence) that any of the Security Assets may be in danger of being seized or sold pursuant to any form of legal process or that it is necessary to do so in order to protect or preserve the security constituted by this Deed.

#### Automatic Conversion

- 4.4 Notwithstanding Clause 4.3 (*Conversion by Notice*) and without prejudice to any law which may have a similar effect, each floating charge created by Clause 4.1 (*Creation of Floating Charge*) will automatically be converted (without notice) with immediate effect into a fixed charge as regards all of the undertaking and assets subject to that floating charge if:
  - 4.4.1 any Chargor creates or attempts to create any Security over any of the Security Assets (except as expressly permitted by the terms of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement or this Deed);
  - 4.4.2 any person levies or takes formal steps to levy any distress, execution or other process against any of the Security Assets in which case the floating charge created by Clause 4.1 (*Creation of Floating Charge*) shall automatically be converted (without notice) with immediate effect into a fixed charge only over such Security Assets affected by such distress, execution or other process;
  - 4.4.3 a resolution is passed or an order is made for the winding-up, dissolution, administration or re-organisation of any Chargor; or
  - 4.4.4 the first floating charge created by the Original Debenture is converted into a fixed charge.

#### Moratorium

- 4.5 Unless Article A52(4) of the Insolvency Act 1986 allows, any floating charge created by this Deed may not be converted into a fixed charge solely by reason of:
  - 4.5.1 the obtaining of a moratorium; or
  - 4.5.2 anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium (including any preliminary decision or investigation),

under Part A1 of the Insolvency Act 1986.

## 5. Perfection of Security

#### Registration at HM Land Registry

5.1 For the purposes of panel 8 of each Form RX1 that may be required to be completed by the Security Trustee in relation to any Mortgaged Property registered or required to be registered at HM Land Registry, each Chargor hereby consents to an application being made by the Security Trustee to the Chief Land Registrar to enter the following restriction in Form P against that Chargor's title to such Mortgaged Property:

"No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate or by the proprietor of any registered charge, not being a charge registered before the entry of this restriction is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated [•] in favour of [insert full name of Security Trustee] referred to in the charges register or its conveyancer]]".

- 5.2 If the title to any Mortgaged Property of any Chargor is not registered at HM Land Registry, that Chargor shall ensure that no person (other than itself) shall be registered under the Land Registration Act 2002 as the proprietor of all or any part of that Mortgaged Property without the prior consent in writing of the Security Trustee.
- 5.3 Whether or not the title to any of the Mortgaged Property is registered at HM Land Registry, in the event that any caution against first registration or any notice (whether agreed or unilateral) is

registered against any Chargor's title to any Mortgaged Property, that Chargor shall immediately provide the Security Trustee with full particulars of the circumstances relating to such registration or notice and, if such caution or notice shall have been registered in order to protect a purported interest the creation of which is not permitted under this Deed, that Chargor shall immediately and at its own expense take such steps as the Security Trustee may reasonably require to ensure that the caution or notice, as applicable, is withdrawn or cancelled.

#### Further Advances

5.4 Subject to the provisions of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement, each Lender is under an obligation to make further advances to the Borrowers under the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement and that obligation will be deemed to be incorporated into this Deed as if set out in this Deed.

#### Acquisition of New Land

- 5.5 In relation to any freehold, commonhold or leasehold property (other than leasehold property with a lease for a remaining term of less than 15 years) which is acquired by or on behalf of any Chargor after the date of this Deed:
  - 5.5.1 if the title to any such property is registered at HM Land Registry, that Chargor shall promptly apply to be registered as the proprietor of the registered estate acquired (or procure that such application is made on its behalf) and (for the purposes of panel II of Form AN1) hereby consents to an application being made by the Security Trustee to the Chief Land Registrar for the registration of an agreed notice in Form ANI to protect this Deed against that Chargor's title to that property;
  - 5.5.2 if the title to any such property is required to be registered at HM Land Registry under the provisions of the Land Registration Act 2002, that Chargor shall promptly apply for first registration of the estate acquired in Form FRI (or procure that such application is made on its behalf) and shall disclose or procure that the existence of this Deed is disclosed to HM Land Registry either in the Form DL accompanying such application or in paneli2 of Form FR1; and
  - 5.5.3 if the title to any such property represents the transfer of either part of a commonhold unit or part of the common parts of land registered as a freehold estate in commonhold land under the Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act 2002, that Chargor shall also procure that the application to register the transfer is accompanied by an application in Form CM3 to register the commonhold community statement that has been amended in relation to the transfer as required by Rule 15 or, as the case may be, Rule I6 of the Commonhold (Land Registration) Rules 2004,

and, in each such case, the relevant Chargor shall, immediately after registration of it as the proprietor of the relevant registered estate, provide the Security Trustee with an official copy of the register recording the same.

## Notices of Charge and Assignment

- Each Chargor shall, promptly upon the request of the Security Trustee from time to time, give or join the Security Trustee in giving:
  - 5.6.1 a notice in the form set out in Part 7 of Schedule 7 (Form of Notice of Charge-Insurance Policies/Insurances) or in such other form as the Security Trustee may reasonably require to the relevant insurers in respect of each of its Insurance Policies and Insurances:

- 5.6.2 a notice in the form set out in Part 1 of Schedule 9 (Form of Notice of Charge Accounts not with the Security Trustee) or, as applicable, Part 1 of Schedule 8 (Form of Notice of Assignment- Specified Contracts and Hedging Agreement) or in such other form as the Security Trustee may reasonably require to each of the counterparties to each Specified Contract to which it is a party and to each bank or financial institution (other than the Security Trustee) in respect of each account of that Chargor opened or maintained with it; and
- 5.6.3 in respect of any other asset which is charged or assigned pursuant to Clause 3 (*Fixed Security*), a notice of charge or, as applicable, assignment in such form as the Security Trustee may reasonably require to the relevant obligor, debtor or other third party (as the case may be).

Each such notice shall be duly signed by or on behalf of the relevant Chargor and that Chargor shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure that each of the persons on whom any such notice is served promptly provides to the Security Trustee a duly signed acknowledgement of that notice in the form set out in Part 2 of Schedule 7, Part 2 of Schedule 8 or, as applicable, Part 2 of Schedule 9 or in such other form in any case as the Security Trustee may reasonably require.

## Acknowledgement of Notice

5.7 The execution of this Deed by the Chargors and the Security Trustee shall constitute notice to the Security Trustee of the charge created by this Deed over any account opened or maintained by any Chargor with the Security Trustee or any of its Affiliates.

#### Deposit of Documents of Title

- Save where already deposited with the Security Trustee pursuant to the Original Debenture, each Chargor shall as soon as reasonably practicable deposit with the Security Trustee (unless already held by its solicitors on behalf of and to the Security Trustee's order or at HM Land Registry for the purpose of registration of the security constituted by this Deed) all deeds, certificates and other documents of title received by it from time to time relating to the Mortgaged Property.
- 5.9 Each Chargor shall promptly deposit with the Security Trustee all policy documents, documents of title and endorsements from time to time relating to any Insurance Policies.

#### Deposit of Securities

- Each Chargor shall, save where already delivered to the Security Trustee pursuant to Original Debenture, in respect of any Securities which are (i) in certificated form and (ii) in its name, promptly:
  - 5.10.1 deposit with the Security Trustee or as it may direct all stock and share certificates and other documents of title or evidence of ownership in its possession or control from time to time relating to such Securities; and
  - 5.10.2 execute and deliver to the Security Trustee all share transfers and other documents as the Security Trustee may from time to time reasonably request in order to enable the Security Trustee (or its nominee(s)) to be registered as the owner or otherwise obtain a legal title to or to perfect its Security in such Securities, to the intent that the Security Trustee may at any time following an Event of Default which is continuing without notice complete and present such transfers and documents for registration.
- 5.11 Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing, each Chargor shall, in respect of any Securities which are in uncertificated form, promptly upon being requested to do so by the Security Trustee, give or procure the giving of, in accordance with and subject to the facilities and requirements of the relevant system, all instructions necessary to effect a transfer of title to

such Securities into an account in the name of the Security Trustee (or its nominee(s)) and to cause the Operator to register on the relevant register of securities the transfer of such title.

5.12 For the purposes of Clauses 5.10 and 5.11 above, the expressions "certificated", "instruction", "Operator", "relevant system" and "uncertificated" shall have the meanings given to those terms in the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.

#### Intellectual Property

5.13 Each Chargor shall if requested by the Security Trustee execute all such documents and do all acts that the Security Trustee may reasonably require to record the interest of the Security Trustee in any registers relating to any material registered Intellectual Property provided that there shall be no transfer of such Intellectual Property to the Security Trustee until the occurrence of an Event of Default which is continuing.

#### 6. Further Assurance

#### Further Assurance

- Each Chargor shall, at its own expense, take whatever action the Security Trustee or any Receiver may reasonably require for:
  - 6.1.1 preserving, perfecting or protecting any Security Asset or the security constituted or intended to be constituted by this Deed over any Security Asset;
  - at any time after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable, facilitating the realisation of any Security Asset; and/or
  - 6.1.3 at any time after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable, facilitating the exercise of all rights, powers and remedies of the Security Trustee or any Receiver or Delegate provided by or pursuant to this Deed or by law in respect of any Security Asset,

including, without limitation, the execution of any transfer, conveyance, assignment or assurance of all or any of the assets forming part of, or intended to form part of, the Security Assets (whether to the Security Trustee or to its nominee(s)) and the giving of any notice, order or direction and the making of any registration which, in any such case, the Security Trustee may think expedient (acting reasonably) but such action being no more onerous than that required under the terms of this Deed.

#### Exclusion of Assets from Fixed Security

- 6.2 For each leasehold property (subject to Exclusions) (the "Excluded Property"), each Chargor shall, upon request by the Security Trustee:
  - 6.2.1 apply for the relevant consent or waiver of prohibition or condition within 10 Business Days of the date of such request and shall use its reasonable endeavours to obtain that consent or waiver of prohibition as soon as possible;
  - 6.2.2 upon reasonable request, keep the Security Trustee informed of its progress in obtaining such consent or waiver; and
  - 6.2.3 forthwith upon receipt of such consent or waiver, provide the Security Trustee with a copy.
- 6.3 Immediately upon receipt of the relevant waiver or consent, the relevant Excluded Property shall stand charged to the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) under Clause 3 (*Fixed Security*). If required by the Security Trustee at any time following receipt of that waiver or

- consent, the relevant Chargor will execute a further valid fixed charge in such form as the Security Trustee shall require.
- 6.4 There shall be excluded from the Security created by Clause 3 (*Fixed Security*) any Excluded Property held by a Chargor until the relevant condition or waiver referred to in Clauses 6.2 and 6.3 (*Exclusion of Assets from Fixed Security*) has been satisfied and obtained. For the avoidance of doubt, no Excluded Property shall be excluded from the Security created by Clause 4 (*Floating Charge*) by operation of this Clause 6.4 (*Exclusion of Assets from Fixed Security*).
- 6.5 If a Chargor receives notice from a third party of its intention to bring proceedings against that Chargor for the forfeiture of that Chargor's leasehold property which is (a) and Excluded Property, and (b) subject only to the Security created by Clause 4 (*Floating Charge*) (a "Floating Charge Excluded Property"), the relevant Chargor will:
  - 6.5.1 as soon as reasonably practicable (and in any event within two Business Days of receipt of such notice or becoming aware of such intention), inform the Security Trustee of the proceedings; and
  - 6.5.2 take all reasonable actions or which the Security Trustee may reasonably request to resolve any issue or dispute with such third party in such a way as to enable the Security created over such Floating Charge Excluded Property by this Deed to remain in place.
- Each Chargor shall hold on trust for the Agent (as trustee for the Finance Parties) all its interest in and to each Security Asset subject to any Exclusion until that Exclusion is Satisfied.

## Legal Mortgage of New Land

- 6.7 Each Chargor shall promptly notify the Security Trustee of any acquisition by it of any freehold, commonhold or leasehold property (other than leasehold property with a lease for a remaining term of less than 15 years) or of any agreement entered into by it or of which it has the benefit for the acquisition of any such property.
- Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 6.1 (*Further Assurance*), each Chargor shall, on demand made to it by the Security Trustee and at its own expense, execute and deliver to the Security Trustee, in form and substance acceptable to the Security Trustee (acting reasonably), a legal mortgage (incorporating terms that are no more onerous than those of this Deed) in favour of the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) of all of its right, title and interest in and to any freehold, commonhold or leasehold property (other than leasehold property with a lease for a remaining term of less than 15 years) which becomes vested in it after the date of this Deed or which is subject to an Exclusion which is Satisfied after the date of this Deed.

#### Implied Covenants for Title

Each of the mortgages, charges and assignments granted by each Chargor under this Deed are, subject to security created under the Original Debenture, granted with full title guarantee in accordance with the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994.

## 7. General Undertakings

#### Negative Pledge

7.1 No Chargor shall create or extend or permit to arise or subsist any Security over the whole or any part of the Security Assets, except as expressly permitted by the terms of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement or with the prior written consent of the Security Trustee.

## Restriction on Disposals

7.2 No Chargor shall (or shall agree to) sell, factor, discount, transfer, assign, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or any part of the Security Assets (whether in a single transaction or in a series of transactions whether related or not), except for any disposal in the ordinary course of trading (as conducted by that Chargor at the date of this Deed) of any Security Asset which is subject only to the floating charge created by Clause 4.1 (*Creation of Floating Charge*) or except as expressly permitted by the terms of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement or this Deed.

#### Access

7.3 Each Chargor shall permit the Security Trustee and any other person nominated by it free access at all reasonable times and on reasonable notice to enter upon and/or view the state and condition of the Security Assets (without, in any case, becoming liable to account as mortgagee in possession).

#### Insurance

- 7.4 Each Chargor shall insure and keep insured the Security Assets in accordance with the terms of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement or in the case of any leasehold property shall use reasonable endeavours to procure that the landlord shall insure and keep insured any leasehold property pursuant to the terms of the relevant lease.
- 7.5 Each Chargor shall, if requested by the Security Trustee, procure that the terms of each such policy require the insurer not to invalidate the policy as against the Security Trustee by reason of the act or default of any other joint or named insured and not to cancel it without giving at least 30 days' prior written notice to the Security Trustee.
- Each Chargor shall promptly pay all premiums and other moneys payable under or in respect of each major policy of insurance as is required by Clause 7.4 above and do all other things necessary to keep each such policy in full force and effect and shall, promptly upon request, produce to the Security Trustee receipts showing the payment of such moneys within the relevant grace period applicable under such policy (or where, in the case of leasehold property, insurance is effected by the landlord, such evidence of the payment of premiums as that Chargor is entitled to obtain from the landlord under the terms of the relevant lease).
- 7.7 Each Chargor shall, on written demand by the Security Trustee, produce to the Security Trustee the policy, certificate or cover note relating to any such insurance as is required by Clause 7.4 above (or where, in the case of any leasehold property, such insurance is effected by the landlord, such evidence of insurance as that Chargor is entitled to obtain from the landlord under the terms of the relevant lease). Where, in the case of leasehold property, such insurance is effected by the landlord or the terms of the relevant lease require the landlord to effect insurance, each Chargor shall use all reasonable endeavours to enforce the covenants by its landlord relating to insurance contained in that lease (including any reinstatement covenants) to the extent that failure to do so would be likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

## Remedying Insurance Defaults

7.8 If default shall be made by any Chargor in complying with Clause 7.4 above, the Security Trustee may (but shall not be obliged to) effect or renew any such insurance as is required by that Clause on such terms, in such name(s) and in such amount(s) as the Security Trustee reasonably considers appropriate. All moneys expended by the Security Trustee in so doing shall be reimbursed by the relevant Chargor to the Security Trustee on demand and until so reimbursed shall carry interest at the rate specified in Clause 2.2 (*Interest*) from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until reimbursed (after as well as before any judgment).

#### Proceeds of Insurance

- 7.9 All moneys received or receivable by each Chargor under any Insurances in respect of the Premises or any other Security Assets of an insurable nature (other than Insurances in respect of third party liability and loss of rent) shall be paid into any Holding Account and/or Mandatory Prepayment Account as may be specified in the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement and until so paid shall be held on trust for the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) and applied (subject to the rights and claims of any person having prior rights thereto):
  - 7.9.1 in accordance with the terms of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement; or
  - 7.9.2 after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable and if the Security Trustee so directs, in or towards satisfaction of the Secured Liabilities in accordance with Clause 15.1 (*Order of Application*).

## Compliance with Laws and Regulations

7.10 Each Chargor shall comply with all laws and regulations for the time being in force relating to or affecting its business or any Security Asset and shall obtain and promptly renew from time to time and comply with the terms of all consents, approvals, authorisations, licences and/or exemptions which may be necessary to enable it properly to operate its business or which are necessary to preserve, maintain or renew any Security Asset in each case where failure to do so would be reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

#### Notices relating to Security Assets

- 7.11 Each Chargor shall, within 14 Business Days after the receipt by it of any material application, requirement, order or notice served or given by any public or local or any other authority with respect to the whole or any part of the Security Assets:
  - 7.11.1 deliver a copy to the Security Trustee;
  - 7.11.2 inform the Security Trustee of the steps taken or proposed to be taken by it to comply with the relevant application, requirement, order or notice; and
  - 7.11.3 comply with any reasonable request by the Security Trustee to take such action as the Security Trustee may believe necessary to preserve or protect the Security Assets or the security constituted or intended to be constituted by this Deed.

## Voting Rights and Dividends relating to Securities

- 7.12 At any time before the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable:
  - 7.12.1 each Chargor shall be entitled to exercise all voting and other rights and powers in respect of the Securities or, if any of the same are exercisable by the Security Trustee (or its nominee(s)), to direct in writing the exercise of those voting and other rights and powers, provided that no Chargor shall exercise or direct the exercise of any voting or other rights and powers in any manner which would breach the provisions of the Finance Documents or would, in the opinion of the Security Trustee (acting reasonably), prejudice the value of the Securities or otherwise jeopardise effectiveness the security constituted by this Deed; and
  - 7.12.2 each Chargor shall be entitled to retain and apply for its own use all dividends, interest and other moneys paid or payable in respect of the Securities and, if any of the same are paid or payable to the Security Trustee (or its nominee(s)), the Security Trustee will hold all such dividends, interest and other moneys received by it for the account of that Chargor and will pay such dividends to that Chargor promptly on request.

- 7.13 At any time after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable, the Security Trustee may at its discretion (in the name of any Chargor or otherwise and without any further consent or authority from any Chargor):
  - 7.13.1 subject to clause 7.14, exercise (or refrain from exercising) all voting and other rights and powers in respect of the Securities;
  - 7.13.2 apply all dividends, interest and other moneys arising from the Securities in accordance with Clause 15.1 (*Order of Application*) and, if any of the same are paid or payable to any Chargor, that Chargor shall hold all such dividends, interest and other moneys on trust for the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) and pay the same immediately to the Security Trustee or as it may direct to be applied in accordance with Clause 15.1 (*Order of Application*);
  - 7.13.3 if not already so transferred, transfer the Securities into the name of, or (as applicable) into an account in the name of, the Security Trustee (or its nominee(s)); and
  - 7.13.4 in addition to any other power created under this Deed, exercise (or refrain from exercising) all the powers and rights conferred on or exercisable by the legal or beneficial owner of the Securities and, except as expressly provided for in the Deed, all the powers and discretions conferred on trustees by the Trustee Act 1925 and the Trustee Act 2000, including, without limitation, the general power of investment set out in section 3 of the Trustee Act 2000, provided that the duty of care set out in section 1 (1) of the Trustee Act 2000 shall not apply to the exercise of any other power of investment (however conferred) by the Security Trustee (or its nominee(s)) in respect of securities or property subject to a trust.
- 7.14 the Security Trustee shall not be entitled to exercise any voting rights or any other rights or powers under paragraph 7.13.1 above if, and to the extent that, from time to time:
  - 7.14.1 a notifiable acquisition would, as a consequence, take place under section 6 of the National Security and Investment Act 2021 (the "Act") and any regulations made under the Act; and:
  - 7.14.2 either:
    - (a) the Secretary of State has not approved that notifiable acquisition in accordance with the Act; or
    - (b) the Secretary of State has so approved that notifiable acquisition but there would, as a consequence, be a breach of the provisions of a final order made in relation to that notifiable acquisition under the Act.

## Calls and Other Obligations in respect of Securities

- 7.15 Each Chargor shall promptly pay all calls and other payments which may be or become properly due in respect of all or any part of the Securities and, if it fails to do so within any applicable grace periods, the Security Trustee may elect (but shall not be obliged) to make such payments on behalf of that Chargor. Any sums so paid by the Security Trustee shall be reimbursed by the relevant Chargor to the Security Trustee on demand and shall carry interest at the rate specified in Clause 2.2 (*Interest*) from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until reimbursed (after as well as before any judgment).
- 7.16 Each Chargor shall remain liable to observe and perform all of the other conditions and obligations assumed by it in respect of any of all or any part of the Securities.
- 7.17 Neither the Security Trustee nor its nominee(s) shall be liable to make any payment in respect of any calls or other payments which may be or become due in respect of the Securities or be under

any duty to make any enquiry into the nature or sufficiency of any payment received by it in respect of the Securities or to present or file or make any claim, take any action or do any other act or thing for the purpose of collecting and/or enforcing the payment of any amount to which it may be entitled in respect of the Securities.

7.18 Each Chargor shall copy to the Security Trustee and comply with all requests for information which is within its knowledge and which are made under section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 or any similar provision contained in any articles of association or other constitutional documents relating to all or any part of the Securities and, if it fails to do so, the Security Trustee may elect (but shall not be obliged) to provide such information as it may have on behalf of (and at the expense of) that Chargor.

#### **Book Debts and Other Debts**

- 7.19 No Chargor shall at any time deal with its book debts and other debts and monetary claims except by using its reasonable endeavours to get in and realise them in the ordinary and usual course of its business and paying all Debt Proceeds (other than any Debt Proceeds which are required to be paid into a Holding Account and/or a Mandatory Prepayment Account pursuant to the terms of the Finance Documents) into the account of that Chargor with the Security Trustee or into such other account as the Security Trustee may direct from time to time. Each Chargor shall, pending such payment in, hold all such Debt Proceeds upon trust for the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties).
- 7.20 Each Chargor agrees with the Security Trustee that any moneys received by the Security Trustee under Clause 7.19 above which derive from rental income of that Chargor shall be received by the Security Trustee in its capacity as chargee pursuant to Clause 3.2.7 (*Book debts*) and not in its capacity as mortgagee of any Mortgaged Property.
- 7.21 Each Chargor shall promptly deliver to the Security Trustee, on the date of this Deed and, if any change occurs thereafter, following the date of such change, details of each account maintained by it with any bank or financial institution (other than the Security Trustee). Each Chargor undertakes that it shall not, without the Security Trustee's prior written consent, permit or agree to any variation of the rights attaching to any such account (except for any changes or variations as a result of a change in the bank's standard terms of business) or close any such account.
- 7.22 Each Chargor agrees with the Security Trustee that it shall not be entitled to receive, utilise, transfer or withdraw any credit balance from time to time on:
  - 7.22.1 any Holding Account and/or Mandatory Prepayment Account; or
  - 7.22.2 any other account with the Security Trustee or any bank or financial institution subject to the Security created by this Deed,

except with the prior written consent of the Security Trustee or if not expressly prohibited by the terms of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement.

7.23 At any time after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable, no Chargor shall be entitled to receive, utilise, transfer or withdraw any credit balance from time to time on any account except with the prior written consent of the Security Trustee.

## Premises, Plant and Machinery

- 7.24 Each Chargor shall at all times, to the Security Trustee's reasonable satisfaction, repair and keep (where such failure to do so would have a Material Adverse Effect):
  - 7.24.1 the Premises in good working order and condition provided that each Chargor shall not be required to keep any leasehold premises in any better working order and condition than that which is required under the relevant lease; and

- 7.24.2 the fixtures, plant, machinery, implements and other effects and chattels owned by it and which are in or upon the Premises or elsewhere in a good state of repair and in good working order and condition and shall, as and when necessary, renew and replace such items when they shall become obsolete, worn out or destroyed with items of similar quality and of equal or greater value.
- 7.25 If default shall be made by any Chargor in complying with Clause 7.24 above, the Security Trustee may (but shall not be obliged to) carry out any necessary repairs and the relevant Chargor shall permit the Security Trustee and its agents and contractors to take any of the steps referred to in Clause 7.31 (*Remedving Mortgaged Property Defaults*) for this purpose.
- 7.26 No Chargor shall, without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), carry out or permit to be carried out any material demolition, rebuilding, reconstruction or structural alteration of any Premises where such action would have a Material Adverse Effect.

#### Mortgaged Property

- 7.27 No Chargor shall, except as expressly permitted by the terms of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement or with the prior written consent of the Security Trustee (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed):
  - 7.27.1 exercise any statutory or other power of leasing or letting, or accept or agree to accept surrenders of any leases, or enter into any agreement for lease or letting, in respect of any Mortgaged Property where such action would have a Material Adverse Effect; or
  - 7.27.2 create any licence in respect of any Mortgaged Property, or let any person into occupation of, or share occupation of, any Mortgaged Property or grant any other proprietary or other right or interest in any Mortgaged Property, where such action would have a Material Adverse Effect.

## 7.28 Each Chargor shall:

- 7.28.1 observe and perform all the terms on its part contained in any lease or agreement for lease comprised within the Mortgaged Property where failure to do so would have a Material Adverse Effect; and
- 7.28.2 duly and punctually perform and observe (where failure to do so would have a Material Adverse Effect) and, in any case, indemnify the Security Trustee for any breach of any covenants, stipulations and obligations (restrictive or otherwise) affecting the Mortgaged Property.

## 7.29 No Chargor shall:

- 7.29.1 enter into any onerous or restrictive covenants affecting the Mortgaged Property which without the consent of the Security Trustee (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed); or
- 7.29.2 sever or unfix or remove any of the fixtures from any Mortgaged Property (except for the purpose of effecting necessary repairs to any such items or renewing or replacing the same in accordance with Clause 7.24 above) to the extent that such severance, unfixing or removal of any such fixtures would have a Material Adverse Effect.
- 7.30 No Chargor shall, without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed):
  - 7.30.1 make or, insofar as it is able, permit others to make any application for planning permission in respect of any Mortgaged Property;

- 7.30.2 carry out or permit to be carried out on any Mortgaged Property any development (within the meaning of that expression in the Planning Acts); or
- 7.30.3 make any VAT election in relation to any Mortgaged Property, in each case, where such action would have a Material Adverse Effect. Remedying Mortgaged Property Defaults
- 7.31 After the security constituted by this Deed becomes enforceable, the relevant Chargor shall permit the Security Trustee and its Security Trustees and contractors:
  - 7.31.1 to enter on the Mortgaged Property;
  - 7.31.2 to comply with or object to any notice served on that Chargor in respect of the Mortgaged Property; and
  - 7.31.3 to take any action as the Security Trustee may reasonably consider necessary to prevent or remedy any breach of any such covenant, undertaking, restriction, applicable law or regulations or to comply with or object to any such notice.
- 7.32 All moneys expended by the Security Trustee in taking any steps referred to in Clause 7.31 above shall be reimbursed by the relevant Chargor to the Security Trustee on demand and until so reimbursed shall carry interest at the rate specified in Clause 2.2 (*Interest*) from the date of payment by the Security Trustee until reimbursed (after as well as before any judgment).

#### Specified Contracts

7.33 No Chargor shall make or agree to make any amendments, variations or modifications to the Specified Contracts or waive any of its rights under the Specified Contracts which would adversely affect the interests of the Finance Parties, without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee or except as expressly permitted by the terms of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement.

## 8. Enforcement of Security

#### When Security becomes Enforceable

- 8.1 The security constituted by this Deed shall at any time after the occurrence of a Declared Default become immediately enforceable and the power of sale and other powers conferred by Section 101 of the LPA, as varied or extended by this Deed, shall be immediately exercisable.
- 8.2 After the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable, the Security Trustee may in its absolute discretion enforce all or any part of that security at the times, in the manner and on the terms it thinks fit and take possession of and hold or dispose of all or any part of the Security Assets.

# Right of Appropriation

8.3 To the extent that any of the Security Assets constitute "financial collateral" and this Deed and the obligations of any Chargor under this Deed constitute a "security financial collateral arrangement" (in each case as defined in, and for the purposes of, the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No. 2) Regulations 2003 (the "Regulations")), the Security Trustee shall have the right, at any time after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable, to appropriate all or any part of such financial collateral in or towards discharge of the Secured Liabilities. For this purpose, the parties agree that the value of such financial collateral shall be (in the case of cash) the amount standing to the credit of each bank account of the relevant Chargor, together with any accrued but unpaid interest, at the time the right of appropriation is exercised and (in the case of Securities) the market price of such Securities determined by the Security Trustee by reference to a public index or by such other process as the Security Trustee

may select, including independent valuation, and which complied with the provisions of the Intercreditor Agreement. In each case, the parties agree that the manner of valuation provided for in this Clause 8.3 shall constitute a commercially reasonable manner of valuation for the purposes of the Regulations.

#### Redemption of Prior Mortgages

- At any time after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable, the Security Trustee may:
  - 8.4.1 redeem any prior Security against any Security Asset; or
  - 8.4.2 procure the transfer of that Security to itself; or
  - 8.4.3 settle and pass the accounts of the person or persons entitled to such Security (and any accounts so settled and passed shall be conclusive and binding on the relevant Chargor).
- 8.5 All principal moneys, interest, costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to any such redemption or transfer shall be paid by the relevant Chargor to the Security Trustee or any Receiver (as applicable) on demand and shall be secured by this Deed.

#### 9. Extension and Variation of the LPA

#### General

- 9.1 For the purposes of all powers implied by the LPA, such powers shall arise (and the Secured Liabilities shall be deemed to have become due and payable for that purpose) on the date of this Deed.
- 9.2 Section 103 of the LPA (restricting the power of sale) and section 93 of the LPA (restricting the right of consolidation) shall not apply to the security constituted by this Deed.
- 9.3 The statutory powers of leasing conferred on the Security Trustee are extended so as to authorise the Security Trustee and any Receiver at any time after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable to make any lease or agreement for lease, accept surrenders of leases and/or grant options on such terms as it or he shall think fit, without the need to comply with any restrictions imposed by sections 99 and 100 of the LPA.

#### Privileges

9.4 Each Receiver and the Security Trustee is entitled to all the rights, powers, privileges and immunities conferred by the LPA on mortgagees and receivers.

## 10. Appointment of Receiver and Administrator

#### Appointment

- Subject to clause 10.2, at any time after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable any Chargor so requests the Security Trustee in writing (in which case, in each such case, the security constituted by this Deed shall become immediately enforceable), the Security Trustee may without prior notice to any Chargor:
  - 10.1.1 appoint free from the restrictions imposed by section 109(1) of the LPA either under seal or in writing under its hand any one or more persons to be a Receiver of the whole or any part or parts of the Security Assets in like manner in every respect as if the Security Trustee had become entitled under the LPA to exercise the power of sale conferred under the LPA; or

10.1.2 appoint one or more persons to be an administrator of any one or more of the Chargors.

#### Moratorium

- 10.2 Unless Article A52(4) of the Insolvency Act 1986 allows, the Security Trustee is not entitled to appoint a Receiver solely by reason of:
  - 10.2.1 the obtaining of a moratorium; or
  - anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium (including any preliminary decision or investigation),

under Part A1 of the Insolvency Act 1986.

#### Removal

- 10.3 The Security Trustee may by writing under its hand (or by an application to the court where required by law):
  - 10.3.1 remove any Receiver appointed by it; and
  - 10.3.2 may, whenever it deems it expedient, appoint any one or more persons to be a new Receiver in the place of or in addition to any Receiver.

## Statutory Powers of Appointment

The powers of appointment of a Receiver conferred by this Deed shall be in addition to all statutory and other powers of appointment of the Security Trustee under the LPA (as extended by this Deed) or otherwise and such powers shall be and remain exercisable from time to time by the Security Trustee in respect of any part or parts of the Security Assets.

#### Capacity of Receiver

- 10.5 Each Receiver shall be deemed to be the agent of the relevant Chargor for all purposes. Each Chargor alone shall be responsible for a Receiver's contracts, engagements, acts, omissions, defaults and losses and for liabilities incurred by him.
- 10.6 The agency of each Receiver shall continue until the relevant Chargor goes into liquidation and after that the Receiver shall act as principal and shall not become the agent of the Security Trustee.
- 10.7 If there is more than one Receiver holding office at the same time, each Receiver shall (unless the document appointing him states otherwise) be entitled to act (and to exercise all of the powers conferred on a Receiver under this Deed) individually or together with any other person appointed or substituted as Receiver.

#### Remuneration of Receiver

10.8 The Security Trustee may fix the remuneration of any Receiver appointed by it without any restriction imposed by section 109(6) of the LPA and the remuneration of the Receiver shall be a debt secured by this Deed which shall be due and payable immediately upon its being paid by the Security Trustee.

## 11. Powers of Receiver

#### General

Each Receiver has, and is entitled to exercise, all of the rights, powers and discretions set out below in this Clause 11 in addition to those conferred by law.

Without prejudice to the generality of this Clause 11, each Receiver shall have all the rights, powers and discretions of an administrative receiver under Schedule 1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 whether he falls within the statutory definition of an administrative receiver or not.

## Specific Powers

- 11.3 Each Receiver shall have the following powers (and every reference in this Clause 11.3 to the "Security Assets" shall be read as a reference to that part or parts of the Security Assets in respect of which that Receiver was appointed):
  - power to purchase or acquire land and purchase, acquire or grant any interest in or right over land as he thinks fit;
  - 11.3.2 power to take immediate possession of, get in and collect any Security Asset;
  - 11.3.3 power to carry on the business of any Chargor as he thinks fit;
  - 11.3.4 power (but without any obligation to do so) to:
    - (a) make and effect all repairs, alterations, additions and insurances and do all other acts which any Chargor might do in the ordinary conduct of its business as well for the protection as for the improvement of the Security Assets;
    - (b) commence or complete any building operations on the Mortgaged Property;
    - (c) apply for and maintain any planning permission, building regulation approval or any other permission, consent or licence; and
    - (d) negotiate for compensation with any authority which may intend to acquire or be in the process of acquiring all or any part of the Security Assets and make objections to any order for the acquisition of all or any part of the Security Assets and represent any Chargor at any enquiry to be held to consider such objections or otherwise relating to any such acquisition

in each case as he thinks fit;

- 11.3.5 power to appoint and discharge managers, officers, agents, advisers, accountants, servants, workmen, contractors, surveyors, architects, lawyers and others for the purposes of this Deed upon such terms as to remuneration or otherwise as he thinks fit and power to discharge any such persons appointed by any Chargor (and the costs incurred by any Receiver in carrying out such acts or doing such things shall be reimbursed to that Receiver by the relevant Chargor on demand and until so reimbursed shall carry interest at the rate specified in Clause 2.2 (*Interest*) from the date of payment by the Receiver until reimbursed (after as well as before any judgment));
- 11.3.6 power to raise and borrow money either unsecured or (with the prior consent of the Security Trustee) on the security of any Security Asset either in priority to the security constituted by this Deed or otherwise and generally on any terms and for whatever purpose he thinks fit;
- 11.3.7 power to sell, exchange, convert into money and realise any Security Asset by public auction or private contract and generally in any manner and on any terms as he thinks fit;
- 11.3.8 power to sever and sell separately any fixtures from the property containing them without the consent of any Chargor;
- power to let any Security Asset for any term and at any rent (with or without a premium) as he thinks fit and power to accept a surrender of any lease or tenancy of any Security

- Asset on any terms which he thinks fit (including the payment of money to a lessee or tenant on a surrender);
- 11.3.10 power to settle, adjust, refer to arbitration, compromise and arrange any claims, accounts, disputes, questions and demands with or by any person who is or claims to be a creditor of any Chargor or relating in any way to any Security Asset;
- 11.3.11 power to bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon all actions, suits and proceedings in relation to any Security Asset or in relation to any Chargor which may seem to him to be expedient;
- 11.3.12 power to give valid receipts for all moneys and execute all assurances and things which may be proper or desirable for realising any Security Asset;
- 11.3.13 power to form a subsidiary of any Chargor and transfer to that subsidiary any Security Asset;
- 11.3.14 power to do all such acts as may seem to him to be necessary or desirable in order to initiate or continue any development of any Security Assets and for these purposes to appoint and to enter into such contracts with such building and engineering contractors or other contractors and professional advisers as he may think fit;
- 11.3.15 power to call any meeting of the members or directors of any Chargor in order to consider such resolutions or other business as he thinks fit;
- 11.3.16 power to exercise in relation to any Security Assets all the powers and rights which he would be capable of exercising if he were the absolute beneficial owner of the same;
- 11.3.17 power to do all other acts and things which he may consider desirable or necessary for realising any Security Asset or incidental or conducive to any of the rights, powers or discretions conferred on a Receiver under or by virtue of this Deed; and
- 11.3.18 power to exercise any of the above powers in the name of or on behalf of the relevant Chargor or in his own name and, in each case, at the cost of that Chargor.

#### Security Trustee's Powers

To the fullest extent permitted by law, any right, power or discretion conferred by this Deed (either expressly or impliedly) upon a Receiver may after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable be exercised by the Security Trustee in relation to any Security Asset, irrespective of whether or not it has taken possession of any Security Asset and without first appointing a Receiver or notwithstanding the appointment of a Receiver.

#### 12. Discretions and Delegation

## Discretion

12.1 Any liberty or power which may be exercised or any determination which may be made under this Deed by the Security Trustee or any Receiver may be exercised or made in its absolute and unfettered discretion without any obligation to give reasons.

## Delegation

Each of the Security Trustee and any Receiver may delegate (either generally or specifically) by power of attorney or in any other manner to any properly qualified person any right, power, authority or discretion conferred on it by this Deed (including the power of attorney).

- Any such delegation may be made upon such terms and conditions (including the power to subdelegate) as the Security Trustee or any Receiver (as the case may be) shall think fit.
- 12.4 Neither the Security Trustee nor any Receiver shall be in any way liable or responsible to any Chargor for any loss or liability arising from any act, default, omission or misconduct on the part of any Delegate.

## 13. Power of Attorney

## Appointment and Powers

- Each Chargor, by way of security, irrevocably appoints the Security Trustee, every Receiver and every Delegate severally and independently to be its attorney and at any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default that is continuing in its name, on its behalf and as its act and deed to execute, deliver and perfect all documents and do all things which the attorney (acting reasonably) may consider to be required for:
  - 13.1.1 carrying out any obligation imposed on any Chargor by this Deed; and
  - enabling the Security Trustee or any Receiver or Delegate to exercise, or delegate the exercise of, any of the rights, powers, authorities and discretions conferred on it or him by or pursuant to this Deed or by law (including the exercise of any right of an absolute legal or beneficial owner of the Security Assets).

## Ratification

Each Chargor shall ratify and confirm whatever any attorney does or purports to do pursuant to its appointment under Clause 13.1 (*Appointment and Powers*).

## 14. Protection of Purchasers

#### Consideration

14.1 The receipt of the Security Trustee or any Receiver or Delegate shall be a conclusive discharge to a purchaser and, in making any sale or other disposal of any of the Security Assets (including a disposal by a Receiver or Delegate to any subsidiary of any Chargor) or in making any acquisition in the exercise of their respective powers, the Security Trustee, every Receiver and every Delegate may do so for such consideration, in such manner and on such terms as it or he thinks fit.

## Protection of Third Parties

- 14.2 No person (including a purchaser) dealing with the Security Trustee, any Receiver or any Delegate shall be bound to enquire:
  - 14.2.1 whether the Secured Liabilities have become payable; or
  - 14.2.2 whether any power which the Security Trustee or any Receiver or Delegate is purporting to exercise has arisen or become exercisable; or
  - 14.2.3 whether any money remains due under the Finance Documents; or
  - 14.2.4 how any money paid to the Security Trustee or to any Receiver or Delegate is to be applied,

or shall be concerned with any propriety, regularity or purpose on the part of the Security Trustee or any Receiver or Delegate in such dealings or in the exercise of any such power.

## 15. Application of Proceeds

## Order of Application

- All moneys received or recovered by the Security Trustee, any Receiver or any Delegate pursuant to this Deed, after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable, shall (subject to the claims of any person having prior rights thereto and by way of variation of the provisions of the LPA) be applied in the following order of priority (but without prejudice to the right of the Security Trustee to recover any shortfall from any Chargor):
  - 15.1.1 in or towards payment of all costs, losses, liabilities and expenses of and incidental to the appointment of any Receiver or Delegate and the exercise of any of his rights and powers, including his remuneration, and all outgoings paid by him;
  - 15.1.2 in or towards payment of all other Expenses;
  - 15.1.3 in or towards payment of all other Secured Liabilities or such part of them as is then due and payable to the Finance Parties in accordance with the order of application set out in clauses 33.13 to 33.15 (*Partial Payments*) of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement (notwithstanding any purported appropriation by any Chargor); and
  - 15.1.4 in payment of the surplus (if any) to any Chargor or other person entitled to it.

#### Suspense Account

- Until all the Secured Liabilities have been unconditionally and irrevocably paid and discharged in full, the Security Trustee may:
  - 15.2.1 without affecting the liability of any Chargor under this Deed:
    - (a) refrain from applying or enforcing any other moneys, security or rights held or received by it in respect of the Secured Liabilities; or
    - (b) apply and enforce the same in such manner and order as it sees fit (whether against the Secured Liabilities or otherwise) and no Chargor shall be entitled to direct the appropriation of any such moneys, security or rights or to enjoy the benefit of the same; and/or
  - 15.2.2 hold in an interest bearing suspense account any moneys received from any Chargor or on account of any Chargor's liability in respect of the Secured Liabilities.
- 15.3 Amounts standing to the credit of any such suspense account shall bear interest at a rate considered by the Security Trustee to be a fair market rate.

### New Accounts

- 15.4 If the Security Trustee (acting in its capacity as trustee for the Secured Parties or otherwise) or any other Finance Party at any time receives, or is deemed to have received, notice of any subsequent Security) other interest affecting any Security Asset in breach of Clause 7.1 (*Negative Pledge*), the Security Trustee and/or any other relevant Finance Party may open a new account with any relevant Chargor.
- 15.5 If the Security Trustee and/or any other Finance Party does not open a new account, it shall nevertheless be treated as if it had done so at the time when it received, or was deemed to have received, such notice. As from that time all payments made by or on behalf of any Chargor to the Security Trustee (whether in its capacity as trustee for the Secured Parties or otherwise) and/or any other Finance Party shall be credited or be treated as having been credited to the new account of that Chargor and not as having been applied in reduction of the Secured Liabilities.

## **Currency Conversion**

For the purpose of or pending the discharge of any of the Secured Liabilities, the Security Trustee and each other Finance Party may (in its absolute discretion) convert any moneys received or recovered by it or any Receiver or Delegate pursuant to this Deed or any moneys subject to application by it or any Receiver or Delegate pursuant to this Deed from one currency to another and any such conversion shall be made at the Security Trustee's (or that Finance Party's) spot rate of exchange for the time being for obtaining such other currency with the first currency and the Secured Liabilities shall be discharged only to the extent of the net proceeds of such conversion realised by the Security Trustee or that Finance Party. Nothing in this Deed shall require the Security Trustee to make, or shall impose any duty of care on the Security Trustee or any other Finance Party in respect of, any such currency conversion.

#### Certificate

15.7 Any certificate signed by an officer of the Security Trustee as to the amount at any time owing under any Finance Document shall set out the basis of calculation in reasonable detail and shall, in the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding upon the Chargors.

## 16. No Liability as Mortgagee in Possession

Neither the Security Trustee nor any Receiver or Delegate shall in any circumstances (either by reason of entering into or taking possession of any Security Assets or for any other reason and whether as mortgagee in possession or on any other basis) be liable to account to any Chargor for anything, except actual receipts, or be liable to any Chargor for any costs, charges, losses, liabilities or expenses arising from the realisation of any Security Assets or from any act, default or omission of the Security Trustee, any Receiver, any Delegate or any of their respective officers, agents or employees in relation to the Security Assets or from any exercise or purported exercise or non- exercise by the Security Trustee or any Receiver or Delegate of any power, authority or discretion provided by or pursuant to this Deed or by law or for any other loss of any nature whatsoever in connection with the Security Assets or the Finance Documents.

## 17. Set Off

Without limiting any other rights conferred on the Security Trustee and/or any other Finance Party by law or by any other agreements entered into with any Chargor, the Security Trustee and each other Finance Party shall have the following rights exercisable by it at any time following the occurrence of an Event of Default and whilst the same is continuing (provided that an Ancillary Lender may at any time in respect of its Ancillary Facilities have such rights) without notice to any Chargor:

- 17.1.1 the right to set off any matured obligation whatsoever due from that Chargor under the Finance Documents (to the extent beneficially owned by the Security Trustee or, as the case may be, such Finance Party) against any obligation whatsoever (whether matured or not) owed by the Security Trustee or, as the case may be, such Finance Party to that Chargor, regardless of the place of payment, booking branch or currency of either obligation;
- 17.1.2 the right, where the obligations referred to in Clause 17.1.1 above are in different currencies, to convert either obligation at such market rate of exchange as the Security Trustee or, as the case may be, such Finance Party shall reasonably select for the purpose of that set-off; and
- 17.1.3 the right, where any obligation referred to in Clause 17.1.1 is unliquidated or unascertained, to set off in an amount estimated by it in good faith to be the amount of such obligation.

Neither the Security Trustee nor any of the other Finance Parties shall be obliged to exercise any right conferred by this Clause 17.

# 18. The Security Trustee as Trustee

- 18.1 The Security Trustee hereby declares itself trustee of the security and other rights (including, but not limited to, the benefit of the covenants contained in this Deed), titles and interests constituted by this Deed and of all moneys, property and assets paid to the Security Trustee or to its order or held by the Security Trustee or its nominee(s) or received or recovered by the Security Trustee or its nominee(s) pursuant to or in connection with this Deed with effect from the date of this Deed to hold the same on trust for itself and each of the other Finance Parties absolutely pro rata (save as may otherwise be agreed between the Security Trustee and the other Finance Parties from time to time) to the moneys, obligations and liabilities of each Chargor owed to all the Finance Parties (including the Security Trustee) from time to time secured by this Deed.
- All moneys received by the Security Trustee or any Receiver or Delegate shall be held by it or him upon trust for the Security Trustee and the other Finance Parties according to their respective interests to apply the same in the order specified in Clause 15.1 (*Order of Application*).
- 18.3 The trusts in this Deed shall remain in force until whichever is the earlier of:
  - 18.3.1 the expiration of a period of 80 years from the date of this Deed; or
  - 18.3.2 receipt by the Security Trustee of confirmation in writing from all of the Finance Parties that the Secured Liabilities are no longer outstanding.

## 19. Effectiveness of Security

#### Continuing Security

The security constituted by this Deed shall remain in full force and effect as a continuing security, unless and until discharged by the Security Trustee or the Secured Liabilities are irrevocably discharged in full and the Finance Parties have no further commitments under the Finance Documents, and will extend to the ultimate balance of all the Secured Liabilities, regardless of any intermediate payment or discharge in whole or in part.

#### Cumulative Rights

The guarantee and security constituted by this Deed and all rights, powers and remedies of the Security Trustee provided by or pursuant to this Deed or by law shall be cumulative, in addition to and independent of any other guarantee or security which the Security Trustee or any other Finance Party may at any time hold for the Secured Liabilities or any other obligations or any rights, powers and remedies provided by law.

#### Reinstatement

- 19.3 Where any discharge, whether in respect of the obligations of any Chargor or any security for those obligations or otherwise, is given or any arrangement is made in whole or in part on the faith of any payment, security or other disposition which is avoided or must be restored on insolvency, liquidation, administration, or otherwise, the liability of each Chargor under this Deed shall continue as if the discharge or arrangement had not occurred.
- 19.4 The Security Trustee may concede or compromise any claim that any payment, security or other disposition is liable to avoidance or restoration.

## Waiver of Defences

- 19.5 Neither the obligations of any Chargor under this Deed nor the security constituted by this Deed nor the rights, powers and remedies of the Security Trustee provided by or pursuant to this Deed or by law will be affected by an act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this Clause 19.5, would reduce, release or prejudice any of its obligations under this Deed, any of that security or any of those rights, powers and remedies (without limitation and whether or not known to it or the Security Trustee or any other Finance Party) other than the actual and irrevocable discharge of the Secured Liabilities including:
  - 19.5.1 any time, waiver or consent granted to, or composition with, any person;
  - 19.5.2 the release of any person under the terms of any composition or arrangement with any creditor of any member of the Group;
  - 19.5.3 the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal or release of, or refusal or neglect to perfect, take up or enforce, any rights against, or security over assets of, any person or any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other requirement in respect of any instrument or any failure to realise the full value of any security;
  - 19.5.4 any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of, or dissolution or change in the members or status of, any person;
  - 19.5.5 any amendment (however fundamental) or replacement of a Finance Document or any other document or security;
  - 19.5.6 any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any obligation of any person under any Finance Document or any other document or security; or
  - 19.5.7 any insolvency or similar proceedings.

#### Immediate Recourse

- 19.6 Each Chargor waives any right it may have of first requiring the Security Trustee or any other Finance Party to proceed against or enforce any other rights or security or claim payment from any person or file any proof or claim in any insolvency, administration, winding up or liquidation proceedings relating to any Obligor or any other person before claiming from it under this Deed. This waiver applies irrespective of any law or any provision of any Finance Document to the contrary.
- 19.7 Each Chargor waives and abandons all and any right which it may have at any time and from time to time under any existing or future Guernsey or Jersey law (as applicable) including, but not limited to the "droit de discussion" and the "droit de division" or otherwise to require that recourse be had to the assets of some other person or to require that any liability of the Chargor be divided or apportioned amongst any other persons or reduced in any manner whatsoever. No Chargor shall be entitled to require that any other person be made a party to any legal proceedings brought by the Security Trustee under this Deed or any other Finance Document and any such right is waived and abandoned.

#### Non-competition

- 19.8 Until the Secured Liabilities, and all amounts which may be or become due and payable in respect of the Secured Liabilities, have been irrevocably paid, performed or discharged in full, no Chargor shall, after a claim has been made against it under this Deed or by virtue of any payment, performance or discharge by it of its obligations under this Deed:
  - 19.8.1 be entitled to exercise any right of contribution or indemnity from any person in respect of any payment made or moneys received on account of its liability under this Deed;

- 19.8.2 exercise any rights of subrogation in respect of any rights, security or moneys held, received or receivable by the Security Trustee or any of the other Finance Parties under this Deed or any other Finance Document or any other guarantee or security taken pursuant to, or in connection with, the Finance Documents by the Security Trustee or any other Finance Party;
- 19.8.3 claim, rank, prove or vote as a creditor of any Borrower or any co-surety in competition with any of the Finance Parties unless the Security Trustee so directs in which case it shall; or
- 19.8.4 receive, claim or have the benefit of any payment, right, distribution or security from or on account of, or exercise any right of set-off as against any Borrower or any co-surety, unless the Security Trustee so directs in which case it shall.
- 19.9 Each Chargor shall hold in trust for and promptly pay or transfer to the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) any payment or distribution or security received by it either contrary to Clause 19.8 above or as a result of a direction of the Security Trustee given under that Clause. If any Chargor exercises any right of set-off contrary to Clause 19.10, it will immediately pay an amount equal to the amount set off to the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties).

#### Security held by Chargors

19.10 No Chargor shall hold any security from any other person in respect of its liability under this Deed. Each Chargor shall hold any security held by it in breach of this Clause 19.10 on trust for the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties).

#### 20. Indemnities

#### General Indemnity

- 20.1 Each Chargor shall, notwithstanding the release or discharge of all or any part of the security constituted by this Deed, indemnify the Security Trustee and every Receiver and Delegate against any cost, loss, liability or damage incurred by any of them as a result of:
  - 20.1.1 any default or delay by that Chargor in the performance of any of its obligations in this Deed (including, without limitation, any arising from any actual or alleged breach by any person of any Environment Laws or Environmental Permits);
  - 20.1.2 the protection or enforcement of the security constituted by this Deed; and
  - 20.1.3 (following the occurrence of a Default) the exercise of any of the rights, powers, discretions and remedies vested in the Security Trustee and each Receiver and Delegate by this Deed or by law in respect of the Security Assets,

unless caused by the wilful misconduct or breach of duty of the Security Trustee.

### Value Added Tax

Any cost or expense referred to in this Clause 20 is exclusive of any value added tax or any other tax which might be chargeable in connection with that cost or expense. If any value added tax or other tax is so chargeable, it shall be paid by the relevant Charger at the same time as it pays the relevant cost or expense.

### 21. Assignment

The Security Trustee may assign, charge or transfer all or any of its rights under this Deed (in accordance with the terms of the Intercreditor Agreement and the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement) without the consent of any Chargor.

#### 22. Partial Invalidity

In the case that one or more of the provisions contained in this Deed should prove to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Deed shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby and, if any part of the security constituted, or intended to be constituted, by this Deed is invalid, unenforceable or ineffective for any reason, that shall not affect or impair any other part of the security.

### 23. Additional Chargors

- 23.1 Subject to compliance with the provisions of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement an Additional Charger shall become a Chargor under this Deed with effect from the time when the Accession Deed takes effect, at which point:
  - 23.1.1 the Additional Chargor shall become bound by all the terms of this Deed and shall assume the same obligations as "**Chargor**" as if it were an original party to this Deed; and
  - 23.1.2 the other Chargers shall assume the same obligations in respect of the Additional Chargor as if it were an original party to this Deed.

#### 24. Remedies and Waivers

- 24.1 No delay or omission of the Security Trustee in exercising any right, power or privilege under this Deed shall operate to impair such right, power or privilege or be construed as a waiver of it. Any single or partial exercise of any such right, power or privilege shall not preclude any other or future exercise or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege.
- Any waiver or consent by the Security Trustee under this Deed must be in writing and may be given subject to any conditions thought fit by the Security Trustee. Any waiver or consent shall be effective only in the instance and for the purpose for which it is given.

### 25. Notices

Notices shall be given in accordance with clause 35 (Notices) of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement.

#### 26. Contractual Recognition of Bail-In

- 26.1 Notwithstanding any other term of any Finance Document or any other agreement, arrangement or understanding between the Parties, each Party acknowledges and accepts that any liability of any Party to any other Party under or in connection with the Finance Documents may be subject to Bail-In Action by the relevant Resolution Authority and acknowledges and accepts to be bound by the effect of:
  - 26.1.1 any Bail-In Action in relation to any such liability, including (without limitation):
    - (a) a reduction, in full or in part, in the principal amount, or outstanding amount due (including any accrued but unpaid interest) in respect of any such liability;

- (b) a conversion of all, or part of, any such liability into shares or other instruments of ownership that may be issued to, or conferred on, it; and
- (c) a cancellation of any such liability; and
- (d) a variation of any term of any Finance Document to the extent necessary to give effect to any Bail-In Action in relation to any such liability.

## 27. Counterparts

This Deed may be executed in any number of counterparts each of which shall be an original and all of such counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument.

#### 28. Applicable Law and Jurisdiction

- 28.1 The law of England and Wales is the law applicable to this Deed.
- 28.2 For the exclusive benefit of the Security Trustee, the parties to this Deed irrevocably agree that the courts of England and Wales are to have jurisdiction to hear and settle any dispute, suit, action, claim or proceeding (together in this Clause 28 referred to as "**Proceedings**") which arises out of or in connection with this Deed, save that nothing contained in this Clause 28.2 shall limit the right of the Security Trustee to take Proceedings against any Chargor in any other court of competent jurisdiction. Each Chargor irrevocably agrees only to bring Proceedings in the courts of England and Wales.
- 28.3 Each Chargor irrevocably waives:
  - 28.3.1 any right it may have to the trial by jury of Proceedings in any such court as is referred to in this Clause 28;
  - 28.3.2 any objection which it may have now or after the date of this Deed to the commencement, or to the venue, of any Proceedings in any such court; and
  - 28.3.3 any claim that any such Proceedings should be brought in a more convenient forum,

and further irrevocably agrees that a judgment in any Proceedings brought in any competent court shall be conclusive and binding upon it and may be enforced in the courts of any other jurisdiction.

Each Chargor consents generally in respect of any Proceedings arising out of or in connection with this Deed to the giving of any relief or the issue of any process in connection with such Proceedings, including, without limitation, the making, enforcement or execution against any assets whatsoever of any order or judgment which may be made or given in such Proceedings.

### 29. Covenant to Release

Upon the irrevocable discharge of the Secured Liabilities or as otherwise permitted under the terms of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement (but not otherwise), the Security Trustee shall (or procure that its nominees shall), at the request and cost of the relevant Chargor, execute and do all such deeds, acts and things as are necessary to release the relevant Security Assets from the security constituted by this Deed, including the payment of any moneys standing to the credit of any Holding Account and/or Mandatory Prepayment Account to such Chargor and shall give any confirmations and notices as may be reasonably requested by each Chargor.

### 30. Prevailing Agreement

The provisions of this Deed are subject to the provisions of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement and in the event of any inconsistency, the provisions of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement shall prevail over the provisions of this Deed, except to the extent necessary

under English law to maintain the Security constituted by this Deed and to preserve the rights and remedies of the Security Trustee and the Finance Parties under this Deed.

**IN WITNESS** whereof this Deed has been entered into as a deed and is intended to be and is delivered on the day and year first before written.

# Schedule 1

# The Chargors

Name	Jurisdiction of Incorporation	Company Number
Caledonia TLG Midco Limited	Jersey	121189
Caledonia TLG Bidco Limited	England and Wales	10246125
The Liberation Group Limited	Jersey	100864
The Liberation Group UK Limited	England & Wales	09253325
Butcombe Brewing Company Limited	England & Wales	04631172
Butcombe Brewery Limited	England & Wales	04631145
The Liberation Pub Company (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	100862
A.S.B.M. Limited	Jersey	5776
A.S.B.O. Limited	Jersey	7977
A.S.B.T. Limited	Jersey	15514
Aurora Hotel Limited	Jersey	7802
Bath Street Wine Cellar Limited	Jersey	4481
Brasserie du Centre Limited	Jersey	11125
Caesarea Hotel (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	747
Café de Paris (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	102
Channel Wines & Spirits (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	2806
Cosy Corner (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	616
Craig Street Brewing Company Limited	Jersey	55652
Don Inn (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	871
Evenstar Limited	Jersey	35223
Exeter Hotel (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	3382
Farmers Inn Limited	Jersey	24675

Five Oaks Hotel Limited	Jersey	513
Lapwing (Trading) Limited	Jersey	97624
La Rocque Inn (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	870
Great Western Hotel Limited	Jersey	12110
Foresters Arms (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	4494
Gimbels (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	619
Gloster Vaults Limited	Jersey	540
Great Union Hotel (Holdings) Limited	Jersey	10445
Horse & Hound (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	2435
La Cave des Vins Limited	Jersey	11383
Le Hocq Hotel Limited	Jersey	7795
Mary Ann Products (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	841
Mitre Hotel (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	832
Parade Hotel (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	872
Peirson (1971) Limited	Jersey	4884
Puffin Newco Limited	Jersey	101220
Red Lion Limited		
Red Lion Linned	Jersey	26193
Robin Hood (Jersey) Limited	Jersey Jersey	26193 4035
	•	
Robin Hood (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	4035
Robin Hood (Jersey) Limited S.L. Limited	Jersey Jersey	4035 5254
Robin Hood (Jersey) Limited  S.L. Limited  St. Johns Hotel Limited	Jersey Jersey	4035 5254 669
Robin Hood (Jersey) Limited S.L. Limited St. Johns Hotel Limited Stag Hotel (Jersey) Limited	Jersey Jersey Jersey Jersey	4035 5254 669 5244
Robin Hood (Jersey) Limited S.L. Limited St. Johns Hotel Limited Stag Hotel (Jersey) Limited Nightbridge Limited	Jersey Jersey Jersey Jersey Jersey	4035 5254 669 5244 97375

Trafalgar Hotel (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	4493
Union Inn (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	722
Victoria (Valley) Limited	Jersey	4631
Victoria Hotel (Jersey) Limited	Jersey	576
Wellington Hotel Limited	Jersey	26151
Wests Cinemas Limited	Jersey	12987
A.E. Smith & Son Limited	Jersey	232
John Tregear Limited	Jersey	165
Victor Hugo Limited	Jersey	19271
Longueville Distributors Ltd	Jersey	2133
Citann Limited	Jersey	8
Square Limited	Jersey	84525
La Rocque Enterprises Limited	Jersey	97374
Old Court House Hotel (St. Aubin) 1972 Limited	Jersey	5189
The Liberation Pub Company (Guernsey) Limited	Guernsey	48938
The Guernsey Brewery Co. (1920) Limited	Guernsey	43
Les Garcons Limited	Guernsey	48016
Hautville Limited	Guernsey	48014
White Hart Limited	Guernsey	2607
Bucktrout & Company Limited	Guernsey	32
Guppy's Holdings Limited	Guernsey	588
Guppy's of Guernsey Limited	Guernsey	2784
Captains Holdings Limited	Guernsey	46874
Ship Holdings Limited	Guernsey	46890
Divette Holdings Limited	Guernsey	46871
Guernsey Leisure Company Limited	Guernsey	46879

Marais Hall Limited Alderney

358

## Schedule 2

## **Real Property**

# Part 1 – Registered Land

(Freehold, commonhold or leasehold property (other than leasehold property with a lease for a remaining term of less than 15 years) (if any) in England and Wales of which the relevant Chargor is registered as the proprietor at the Land Registry)

No.	Name of Chargor	Premises at:	Registered at HM Land Registry under Title No:
1.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Queen Victoria Inn, Pelting Drove, Priddy, Wells BAS 3BA	Freehold, WS24430
2.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Swan Inn, Rowberrow, Winscombe BS25 1QL	Freehold, ST215864
3.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Prince of Wales, 84 Stoke Lane, Westbury-on-Trym, Bristol BS9 3SP	Freehold, AV223077
4.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Lamb Hotel, The Square, Axbridge BS26 2AP	Freehold, ST215847
5.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Rose and Crown Inn and car park (title number ST255628); and Garriao (title number ST299443), High Street, Hinton Charterhouse, Bath BA2 7SN	Freehold, ST255628 and ST299443
6.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Old Crown Inn, Kelston, Bath BA1 9AQ	Freehold, ST147546 and ST164273
7.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Queens Arms, Celtic Way, Bleadon, Weston-super- Mare BS24 0NF	Freehold, AV214731
8.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Cross Keys Inn, 20 High Street, Rode, Frome BA11 6NZ	Freehold, WS18030
9.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Ring of Bells, The Street, Compton Martin, Bristol BS40 6JE	Freehold, ST215849
10.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Ring O' Bells, Temple Cloud, Hinton Blewett, Bristol BS39 5AN (AV248541) and Manor Cottage, Hinton Blewitt (AV125727)	Freehold, AV248541 and AV125727
11.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Pelican Inn, 10 South Parade, Chew Magna, Bristol BS40 8SL	Freehold, ST279969
12.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Charlton Inn, Charlton Road, Shepton Mallet BA4 5PH	Freehold, WS76511
13.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Restoration Inn, 55-57 High Street, Cheltenham GL50 1DX	Freehold, GR229738

14.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Ostrich Inn, Lower Guinea Street, Redcliffe, Bristol BS1 6TJ	Freehold, AV241090
15.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Bear Inn, 12 Dyer Street, Cirencester, Gloucestershire GL7 2PF	Freehold, GR164363
16.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	18 Church Road, Almondsbury, Bristol BS32 4DT andThe Bowl Public House, Church Road, Almondsbury, Bristol BS32 4DT	Freehold, GR180294 and AV223414
17.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Smoking Dog Public House, 62 High Street, Malmesbury, Wiltshire SN16 9AT	Freehold, WT112059
18.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	White Horse Inn, Buckover, Gloucestershire GL12 8DX	Freehold, AV128855
19.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Langford Inn & Restaurant, Lower Langford, Langford, Bristol BS40 5BL	Freehold, AV243678
20.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Land on the east side of the road leading from Alveston to Falfield	Freehold, AV136235
21.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	2 High Street, Corsham, Wiltshire SN13 OHB	Freehold, WT179129
22.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Beambridge Hotel, Sampford Arundel, Wellington, Somerset TA21 0HB	Freehold, ST10089
23.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Limekiln Inn, Knole, Nr Long Sutton Langport TA10 9JH	Freehold, ST137745
24.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Coach House Inn, Manor Gardens, Locking, N Somerset BS24 8DG	Freehold, ST194574
25.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Horse & Groom, The Street, Charlton, Malmesbury SN16 9DL	Freehold, WT135962
26.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Quarrymans Arms, Box Hill, Corsham, Wiltshire SN13 8HN	Freehold, WT432377
27.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Royal Oak Inn, 43 The Burgage, Prestbury, Cheltenham GL52 3DL	Freehold, GR236806
28.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Rodney Stock Inn, Wells Road, Rodney Stoke, Cheddar BS27 3XB	Freehold, WS18176
29.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Castle Inn, Main Road, West Lulworth, Dorset BH20 5RN	Freehold, DT316100
30.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Bower Inn, East Bower, Bridgwater, Somerset TA6 4TY	Freehold, ST90509

31.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Avon Causeway Hotel, Avon Rd, Hurn BH23 6AS	Freehold, DT200064
32.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Badminton Arms, Badminton Road, Coalpit Heath, Bristol BS36 2QJ and Land adjoining Badminton Arms, Badminton Road, Coalpit Heath, Bristol BS36 2QJ	Freehold, GR403616 and GR405119
33.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Beckford Inn Hotel, Beckford, Tewkesbury GL20 7AN	Freehold, HW182475
34.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Beehive, Black Bourton Road, Carterton OX18 3HA	Freehold, ON293375
35.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Cotswold Gateway Hotel, 216 The Hill, Burford 0X18 4HX	Freehold, ON272885
36.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Crown Tolldown, Toll Down Way, Dyrham, Chippenham SN14 8HZ	Freehold, GR441427
37.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Dean Park Inn, 41 Wimborne Rd, Bournemouth BH2 6NB	Freehold, DT243243
38.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Fish Inn, The Bridges, West St, Ringwood BH24 2AA	Freehold, HP598468
39.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Fleet Inn, Fleet Lane, Twyning, Tewkesbury GL20 6FL	Freehold, GR235555
40.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Fox & Hounds, Sheffield Bottom, Burghfield	Freehold, BK53094
41.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Land at the rear of the Fox & Hounds, Sheffield Bottom, Theale.	Freehold, BK289320
42.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Fleur De Lys, High Street, Norton St Philip Bath BA2 7LG	Freehold, ST68805
43.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Plaine, Bell Hill, Norton St Philip, BA2 7 LT	Freehold, ST71712
44.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The George Inn, Norton St Philip, Bath BA2 7LH	Freehold, WS90832
45.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Goat & Tricycle, 27-29 West Hill Rd, Bournemouth BH2 5PF	Freehold, DT189854
46.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Hadley Bowling Green Inn, Hadley Heath, Droitwich WR9 OAR	Freehold, HW156606
47.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	High Corner Inn, Linwood, Ringwood BH24 3QY	Freehold, HP597344
48.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Kings Arms, 20 Market Place, Melksham, SN12 6EX	Freehold, WT430123

49.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Mill Tavern, Shottermill Rd, Haslemere, Surrey GU27 3QE	Freehold, WSX255000
50.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Penny (formerly the Penny Farthing) 115 Whiteladies Rd, Redland, Bristol BS8 2PB	Freehold, AV248989
51.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The White Hart Inn, 22 High Street, Wroughton, Swindon (SN4 9JX)	Freehold, WT181913
52.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Victoria Arms, Marston Ferry OX3 0PZ	Leasehold, ON98432
53.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Bird in Hand, Bath Road, Knowl Hill, Reading RG10 9UP	Freehold, BK482504 and BK480379
54.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Rising Sun 91 West Town Road Backwell Bristol BS48 3BH	Freehold, ST169069
55.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	The Northey Arms, Bath Road, Box, Corsham SN13 8AE	Freehold, WT181280
56.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Station House, Bath Road, Box, Corsham SN13 8AE	Freehold WT171091

# Part 2 – Unregistered Land

(Freehold or leasehold property (other than leasehold property with a lease for a remaining term of less than 15 years) (if any) in England and Wales title to which is not registered at the Land Registry of which the relevant Chargor is the owner)

No.	Name of Chargor	Premises at:
1.	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Land at the front of the Fox & Hounds, Station Road, Sunnyside, Theale, Berkshire, RG7 4BE

# Schedule 3

# **Insurance Policies**

Name of Chargor	Insurance Company	Type of insurance policy	Policy Number	Date of issue
Butcombe	CFC Underwriting	Buyer's Warranty		On or around the
Brewery Limited	Limited	and Indemnity		date of this Deed

# Schedule 4

# **Specified Intellectual Property**

None at the date hereof.

# Schedule 5

# **Specified Securities**

Name of Chargor	Name of Company in which shares are held	Class of shares held	Number of shares held
Caledonia TLG Midco Limited	Caledonia TLG Bidco Limited	Ordinary shares of £0.01 each	23
The Liberation Group Limited	The Liberation Group UK Limited	Ordinary shares of £1 each	10,000
The Liberation Group UK Limited	Butcombe Brewing Company Limited	Ordinary shares of £1 each	3,635,220
Butcombe Brewing Company Limited	Butcombe Brewery Limited	Ordinary shares of £1 each	1

### Schedule 6

#### **Specified Contracts**

Name of Chargor	Document	Date	Parties	Description
Butcombe Brewery Limited	Share Purchase Agreement	On or around the date of this Deed	(1) Butcombe Brewery Limited (2) The Individual Sellers (as therein defined) (3) The Institutional Sellers (as therein defined)	Share Purchase Agreement in relation to the entire issued share capital of Cirrus Inns Holdings Limited
Butcombe Brewery Limited	Management Warranty Deed	On or around the date of this Deed	Butcombe Brewery     Limited     Alexander Langlands     Pearse, Charles     Langhorne Butterworth     and Kalpana Kartika     Goundar	A management warranty deed entered into pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement

[name of relevant Chargor]

# Schedule 7

# Form of Notice of Charge- Insurance Policies/Insurances

# Part 1- Form of Notice

То:	[Na]	ame of relevan	t insurer]		
Address	: [	]			[Date]
Dear Sir	'S				
		<i>Chargor</i> ]- [In: d [•] (the "Pol		olic[y] [ies]] [Insuranc	e Polic[y] [ies]]
Chargor on or ab (the " <b>De</b> present a	r] (the "Conout out ebenture") and future i	mpany") HER 2022 the Company oright, title and i	REBY GIVE NOTICE and made between, in charged to the Security	nter alios, the Company y Trustee by way of firs Policies, including all cla	and the Security Trustee
policy d Polic[y] connecti	ocuments, [ies]), show	documents of t ald be held to t Policies shou	title and endorsements he order of the Securi	cies in substitution for the relating to all such polity Trustee and all paymurity Trustee may direct	icies (including the
The Con	npany conf	irms that:			
(i)		-		ications received from it Trustee shall prevail;	and from the Security
(ii)					e of Charge (the "Notice") 's specific written consent;
(iii)	-	en notice or ins all be conclusi	<del>-</del>	ı by the Security Trustee	e in accordance with this
of ackno	wledgeme	nt and returnin	g it to the Security Tr	your agreement to it by ustee's solicitors, CMS reet, London EC4N 6AI	
This not English	-	non-contractu	nal obligations arising	out of or in connection	with it is governed by
Yours fa	uithfully				
	on behalf			for and on behalf of <b>HS</b>	RC Cornerate

Trustee Company (UK) Limited

# Part 2- Form of Acknowledgement

# [on duplicate]

To:		HSBC Co	orporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited	
Address:		[	1	[Date]
Attention	1:	[	1	
Dear Sirs	8			
	otice sl		of the Notice of Charge of which this is a copy. Terms and expressions the same meanings when used in this acknowledgment. We agree to an	
(a)	we will hold the Polic [y] [ies], together with any new policy or policies in substitution for the Polic [y] [ies] and all policy documents, documents of title and endorsements relating to all such policies (including the Polic[y] [ies]), to your order and accept, agree to and will comply with the terms of the Notice;			
(b)	we will send to you copies of any notices which we may give to the Company under such policies (including the Polic[y] [ies]) at the same time as we send them to the Company;			
(c)	we have not received notice of any other charge, assignment or other third party right or interest whatsoever in, of, over, or affecting, any such policies (including the Polic[y] [ies]); and			
(d)	this acknowledgement is freely assignable or transferable by you, by any subsequent assignee, transferee or successor in title in accordance with the terms of such policies (including the Polic[y] [ies]) ("Subsequent Party") and by any receiver appointed by you or by any Subsequent Party pursuant to the Debenture.			
respect o	f any s	uch polici	rmation in paragraph (a) above is given subject to our right of cancellates (including the Polic[y] [ies]) on default in payment of any premium such time as we receive notice to the contrary from you):	
(i)	to adv		comptly if any such premiums are not received by us within 30 days of	renewal
(ii)	giving	g you 30 d	our right of cancellation on default in payment of any such premiums vays' notice in writing and therefore a reasonable opportunity of paying anding; and	
(iii)	chang		omptly of, and in any event before giving our agreement to, any materiare proposed to be made to the terms of any such policies (including the	
Yours fa	ithfully	1		
for and o	n beha			

[Name of relevant insurer]

#### Schedule 8

### Form of Notice of Assignment - Specified Contracts and Hedging Agreement

#### Part 1 - Form of Notice

Го:	[Name o	f relevant counterpart	y to Hedging Agreei	ment]	
Address:	[	]			[Date]

**Dear Sirs** 

HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited (the "Security Trustee") and [name of relevant Chargor] (the "Company") HEREBY GIVE NOTICE that by an assignment contained in a mortgage debenture dated on or about 2022 and made between, inter alios, the Company and the Security Trustee (the "Debenture") the Company assigned to the Security Trustee all of its present and future right, title and interest in and to the following agreement:

[describe agreement]

(the "Agreement") including, but not limited to, the right to demand and receive all moneys whatsoever payable to or for the benefit of the Company under or arising from the Agreement, all remedies provided for in the Agreement or available at law or in equity in relation to the Agreement, the right to compel performance of the Agreement and all other rights, interests and benefits whatsoever accruing to or for the benefit of the Company arising from the Agreement.

All moneys payable by you to the Company pursuant to the Agreement shall be paid to the Company's account (account number [insert account number], sort code [insert sort code] and account reference "[insert account name]") with the Security Trustee unless and until you receive notice from the Security Trustee to the contrary, in which event you should make all future payments as directed by the Security Trustee.

Notwithstanding the assignment referred to above or the making of any payment by you to the Security Trustee, the Company shall remain liable under the Agreement to perform all the obligations assumed by it under the Agreement and neither the Security Trustee nor any receiver nor any delegate appointed by the Security Trustee or any such receiver shall be at any time under any obligation or liability to you under or in respect of the Agreement. The Company shall also remain entitled to exercise all its rights, powers and discretions under the Agreement and you should continue to give notices under the Agreement to the Company in each case unless and until you receive notice from the Security Trustee to the contrary when all such rights, powers and discretions shall be exercisable by, and notices shall be given to, the Security Trustee or as it directs.

Please note that, pursuant to the Debenture, the Company and the Security Trustee have agreed that the Company will not make or agree to make any amendments, variations or modifications to the Agreement or waive any of its rights under the Agreement, without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee or except as expressly permitted by the terms of the Debenture.

The Company confirms that:

- (i) in the event of any conflict between communications received from it and from the Security Trustee, the communication from the Security Trustee shall prevail;
- (ii) none of the instructions, authorisations or confirmations in this Notice of Assignment (the "Notice") can be revoked or varied in any way except with the Security Trustee's specific written consent; and
- (iii) any written notice or instructions given to you by the Security Trustee in accordance with this Notice shall be conclusive.

Kindly acknowledge receipt of this Notice and confirm your agreement to it by signing the enclosed form of acknowledgement and returning it to the Security Trustee's solicitors, CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro Olswang LLP, at Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London EC4N 6AF, United Kingdom.

This notice and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it is governed by English Law.

Yours faithfully	
for and on behalf of [name of relevant Chargor]	for and on behalf of HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited

### Part 2 - Form of Acknowledgement

[on duplicate]

### To: HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited

[Date]

#### Dear Sirs

We acknowledge receipt of the Notice of Assignment of which this is a copy. Terms and expressions defined in that Notice shall have the same meanings when used in this acknowledgment. We give any consent to the creation of the assignment required pursuant to the Agreement and agree to and confirm that:

- (a) we will pay all moneys hereafter becoming due to the Company in respect of the Agreement as directed in the Notice and accept and will comply with the terms of the Notice;
- (b) we will send to you copies of any notices which we may give to the Company under the Agreement at the same time as we send them to the Company;
- (c) we have not received notice of any other charge, assignment or other third party right or interest whatsoever in, of, over, or affecting, the Agreement or any other notice relating to the Agreement; and
- (d) this acknowledgement is freely assignable or transferable by you, by any subsequent assignee, transferee or successor in title in accordance with the terms of the Agreement ("Subsequent Party") and by any receiver appointed by you or by any Subsequent Party pursuant to the Debenture.

Yours faithfully
for and on behalf of
[Name of relevant counterparty to Hedging Agreement]

#### Schedule 9

#### Form of Notice of Charge- Accounts not with the Security Trustee

#### Part 1 -Form of Notice

To:	[Name of relevant bank or financial institution]				
Address:	[	]	[Date]		
Dear Sirs					

[insert name of Security Trustee] (the "Security Trustee") and [name of relevant Chargor] (the "Company") HEREBY GIVE NOTICE that by a charge contained in a mortgage debenture dated on or about 2022 and made between, inter alios, the Company and the Security Trustee (the "Debenture") the Company charged to the Security Trustee by way of first fixed charge all of its present and future right, title and interest in and to all moneys from time to time deposited in or standing to the credit of any bank account with any bank or financial institution, including the following account(s) (each a "Relevant Account") maintained with you:

[Specify accounts: account name, account number, details of branch etc].

Accordingly, the Company hereby irrevocably and unconditionally instructs and authorises you:

- (a) to disclose to the Security Trustee, without any reference to or further authority from the Company and without any enquiry by you as to the justification for such disclosure, such information relating to any of the Relevant Accounts and the moneys from time to time deposited in or standing to the credit of any of the Relevant Accounts as the Security Trustee may at any time and from time to time request you to disclose to it;
- (b) not to permit any withdrawal by the Company of all or any part of the moneys from time to time deposited in or standing to the credit of any of the Relevant Accounts without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee;
- (c) to hold all moneys from time to time deposited in or standing to the credit of any of the Relevant Accounts to the order of the Security Trustee and to pay or release all or any part of such moneys in accordance with the written instructions of the Security Trustee at any time and from time to time; and
- (d) to comply with the terms of any other written notice or instructions that you receive at any time and from time to time from the Security Trustee in any way relating to the Debenture, any of the Relevant Accounts or the moneys from time to time deposited in or standing to the credit of any of the Relevant Accounts without any reference to or further authority from the Company and without any enquiry by you as to the justification for or validity of such notice or instructions.

The Security Trustee has agreed that the Company may withdraw any moneys from any of the Relevant Accounts without any reference to or further authority from the Security Trustee except to the extent that the Security Trustee gives you notice to the contrary. Upon and after the giving of such notice, the Company shall cease to be entitled to make any such withdrawal to the extent specified in the notice.

The Company confirms that:

- (i) in the event of any conflict between communications received from it and from the Security Trustee, the communication from the Security Trustee shall prevail;
- (ii) none of the instructions, authorisations or confirmations in this Notice of Charge (the "**Notice**") can be revoked or varied in any way except with the Security Trustee's specific written consent; and

(iii) any written notice or instructions given to you by the Security Trustee in accordance with this Notice shall be conclusive.

Kindly acknowledge receipt of this Notice and confirm your agreement to it by signing the enclosed form of acknowledgement and returning it to the Security Trustee's solicitors, CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro Olswang LLP, at Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London EC4N 6AF, United Kingdom.

This notice and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it is governed by English Law.

Yours faithfully	
for and on behalf of [name of relevant Chargor]	for and on behalf of HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited

[name of relevant bank or financial institution]

**Execution Version** 

# Part 2 - Form of Acknowledgement

[on duplicate]

To:	HSBC	C Corpora	nte Trustee Company (UK) Limited	
Address:		[	]	[Date]
Attention	1:	[	]	
Dear Sirs	3			
	otice sl		of the Notice of Charge of which this is a copy. Terms and expressions he same meanings when used in this acknowledgment. We agree to an	
(a)	we ac	cept and w	vill comply with the terms of the Notice;	
(b)			eived notice of any other charge, assignment or other third party right of, over or affecting any of the Relevant Accounts;	or interest
(c)	Truste any ot usual	e's prior v her right a	imed or exercised and will not claim or exercise (except with the Secur written consent) any Security, right of set-off, consolidation or counter- against or in respect of any of the Relevant Accounts, except in respect active and transactional fees and charges in relation to the Relevant Accounts.	claim or of our
(d)	after r	eceipt by	mit the Company to make any withdrawal from any of the Relevant Acus of a notice from the Security Trustee prohibiting such withdrawals t in that notice.	
Yours fai	ithfully	ī		
for and o	n beha	 lf of		

#### Schedule 10

#### Form of Accession Deed

**THIS ACCESSION DEED** is made on the  $[\bullet]$  day of  $[\bullet]$  20 $[\bullet]$ 

### BETWEEN:

- (1) **[INSERT THE NAMES OF THE ADDITIONAL CHARGOR]** (registered in England and Wales under number [ ]) (the "Additional Chargor"); and
- (2) [CALEDONIA TLG MIDCO LIMITED, (registered in Jersey under number 121189 (the "Parent"); and
- (3) **HSBC CORPORATE TRUSTEE COMPANY (UK) LIMITED** as Security Trustee for the Secured Parties (the "Security Trustee").

#### WHEREAS:

- (A) This Deed is supplemental to a debenture (the "**Debenture**") dated 2022 (as may be supplemented, amended or restated from time to time) between, inter alios, the Parent and the Security Trustee.
- (B) The Additional Chargor has agreed to charge in favour of the Security Trustee, on the terms contained in the Debenture, all of its property, undertaking and assets to secure the Secured Liabilities (as defined in the Debenture), and to accede to the Debenture.

## 1. Definitions and Interpretation

Words and phrases defined in the Debenture and principles of interpretation provided for in the Debenture shall, unless the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise re- defined below, have the same meaning and shall apply (as the case may be) to this Deed.

#### 2. Accession by the Additional Chargor to the Debenture

- 2.1 The Additional Chargor agrees to be bound by the terms of the Debenture and to perform all its obligations (whether as Chargor or otherwise) under the Debenture (including for the avoidance of doubt, any guarantee obligations thereunder) with effect from the date of this Deed as if it had been an original party to the Debenture.
- 2.2 All the provisions of the Debenture shall apply to this Deed and, subject to Clauses 3 (*Fixed Charge*) and 4 (*Floating Charge*) hereof, the security hereby constituted as if incorporated herein in full (mutatis mutandis) and the same shall be construed accordingly with the intent and effect that all the rights, obligations, covenants, assurances and provisions express or implied contained in or subsisting in relation to the Debenture shall apply hereto and to the security hereby constituted as if expressly set out herein and references to he "Deed" and abbreviated references to the same by words such as "hereof, "hereunder", "hereto" or "herein", shall be read and construed accordingly.
- 2.3 The definition of "Charged Property" and each part thereof contained in the Debenture, shall for the avoidance of doubt, include all or the relevant part, of the rights, property, assets and undertaking mortgaged or charged as the case may be pursuant to Clauses 3 (*Fixed Charge*) and 4 (*Floating Charge*) of this Deed.
- 2.4 The Additional Chargor covenants with the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) that it will pay, perform and discharge the Secured Liabilities as and when the same fall due for payment, performance or discharge in accordance with the terms of the Debenture.

2.5 The Company (on behalf of itself and the other members of the Group which are parties to the Debenture) hereby agrees to the Additional Chargor's accession.

#### 3. Fixed Security

- 3.1 The Additional Chargor, as security for the payment, performance and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, charges in favour of the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) by way of a first legal mortgage all of the Additional Chargor's right, title and interest in and to the freehold, commonhold and leasehold property (other than leasehold property with a lease for a remaining term of less than 15 years) now vested in it (including, but not limited to, the freehold, commonhold and leasehold property (if any) specified in Schedule 1 (*Real Property*)) (other than any subject to an Exclusion unless and until the same is satisfied).
- 3.2 The Additional Chargor, as security for the payment, performance and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, charges in favour of the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) by way of first fixed charge all of the Additional Chargor's right, title and interest in and to the following assets, both present and future:
  - 3.2.1 **Other real property** all estates or interests in any freehold, commonhold or leasehold property (other than (i) such property effectively mortgaged under Clause 3.1 above; (ii) any property subject to an Exclusion unless and until the same is satisfied) and (iii) leasehold property with a lease for a remaining term of less than 15 years;
  - 3.2.2 **Licences on land-** all licences held by it to enter upon or use land and/or to carry on the business carried on upon that land and all agreements relating to land to which it is a party or otherwise entitled;
  - 3.2.3 **Rights as tenant** where any Mortgaged Property is leasehold property, any right or interest arising by virtue of any enfranchising legislation (including, but not limited to, the Leasehold Reform Act 1967 and the Leasehold Reform Housing and Urban Development Act 1993 but excluding Part II of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954) which confers upon a tenant of property whether individually or collectively with other tenants of that or other properties the right to acquire a new lease of that property or to acquire, or require the acquisition by a nominee of, the freehold or any intermediate reversionary interest in that property;
  - 3.2.4 **Rental income** any amounts owing to it by way of rent, licence fee, service charge, dilapidations, ground rent and/or rent charge in respect of any Mortgaged Property or Premises;
  - 3.2.5 *Fixed or other plant and machinery* all fixed and other plant and machinery, computers, vehicles, office equipment and other chattels in its ownership or possession (but excluding any of those items to the extent that they are part of its stock in trade);
  - 3.2.6 *Insurances* all Insurances, including all claims, the proceeds of all claims and all returns of premium in connection with Insurances;
  - 3.2.7 **Book debts** all book debts and all other debts or monetary claims (including all chases in action which may give rise to a debt or monetary claim), all proceeds thereof and, in each case, any cheque, bill, note, negotiable instrument or other document representing the same;
  - 3.2.8 **Bank accounts and deposits** all moneys from time to time deposited in or standing to the credit of any bank account with the Security Trustee or any other bank or financial institution (including, without limitation, any rent deposit given to secure liabilities in relation to land and any retention or similar sum arising out of a construction contract or any other contract (and, in each case, any cheque, bill, note, negotiable instrument

or other document representing the same), together with all moneys from time to time deposited in or standing to the credit of any Holding Account and/or Mandatory Prepayment Account.

- 3.2.9 **Securities** all Securities and their Related Rights;
- 3.2.10 Goodwill and uncalled capital- all of its goodwill and uncalled capital;
- 3.2.11 *Intellectual property-* all Intellectual Property;
- 3.2.12 Business licences- all licences, consents and authorisations (statutory or otherwise) held by it in connection with its business or the use of any Security Asset and the right to recover and receive all compensation which may be payable in respect of them;
- 3.2.13 *Contracts* each of the Specified Contracts, together with each Hedging Agreement (to the extent not otherwise validly and effectively assigned pursuant to Clause 3.3 (*Assignment*) below): and
  - (a) all contracts, guarantees, appointments, warranties and other documents to which it is a party or in its favour or of which it has the benefit relating to any letting, development, sale, purchase or the operation of any Mortgaged Property or Premises;
  - (b) all agreements entered into by it or of which it has the benefit under which credit of any amount is provided to any person;
  - (c) all contracts for the supply of goods and/or services by or to it or of which it has the benefit (including, without limitation, any contracts of hire or lease of chattels); and
  - (d) any currency or interest swap or any other interest or currency protection, hedging or financial futures transaction or arrangement entered into by it or of which it has the benefit (whether entered into with any of the Finance Parties or any other person),

including, in each case, but without limitation, the right to demand and receive all moneys whatsoever payable to or for its benefit under or arising from any of them, all remedies provided for in any of them or available at law or in equity in relation to any of them, the right to compel performance of any of them and all other rights, interests and benefits whatsoever accruing to or for its benefit arising from any of them.

#### Assignment

3.3 The Additional Chargor, as security for the payment, performance and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, assigns to the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) absolutely by way of a first legal assignment all of the Additional Chargor's right, title and interest in and to each of the Specified Contracts, together with each Hedging Agreement.

#### 4. Floating Charge

#### Creation of Floating Charge

4.1 The Additional Chargor, as security for the payment, performance and discharge of all the Secured Liabilities, charges in favour of the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) by way of a first floating charge all of the Additional Chargor's undertaking and all its other property, assets and rights whatsoever, all the stock in trade of the Additional Chargor and the property, assets and rights not otherwise validly and effectively mortgaged, charged or assigned (whether at law or in equity) by way of fixed security pursuant to Clause 3 (*Fixed Security*).

4.2 The provisions of paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 shall apply to the floating charge created pursuant to Clause 4.1 (*Creation of Floating Charge*) above.

#### Conversion by Notice

- 4.3 The Security Trustee may by notice in writing at any time to the Additional Chargor convert the floating charge created by the Additional Chargor pursuant to Clause 4.1 (*Creation of Floating Charge*) above with immediate effect into a fixed charge (either generally or specifically) as regards any assets of that Chargor specified in the notice if:
  - 4.3.1 an Event of Default has occurred and while the same is continuing; or
  - 4.3.2 the Security Trustee reasonably considers (based on reasonable evidence) that any of the Security Assets may be in danger of being seized or sold pursuant to any form of legal process or that it is necessary to do so in order to protect or preserve the security constituted by this Deed.

#### **Automatic Conversion**

- 4.4 Notwithstanding Clause 4.3 (*Conversion by Notice*) and without prejudice to any law which may have a similar effect, each floating charge created by Clause 4.1 (*Creation of Floating Charge*) will automatically be converted (without notice) with immediate effect into a fixed charge as regards all of the undertaking and assets subject to that floating charge if:
  - 4.4.1 the Additional Chargor creates or attempts to create any Security over any of the Security Assets (except as expressly permitted by the terms of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement or this Deed);
  - 4.4.2 any person levies or takes formal steps to levy any distress, execution or other process against any of the Security Assets in which case the floating charge created by Clause 4.1 (*Creation of Floating Charge*) shall automatically be converted (without notice) with immediate effect into a fixed charge only over such Security Assets affected by such distress, execution or other process; or
  - 4.4.3 a resolution is passed or an order is made for the winding-up, dissolution, administration or re-organisation of the Additional Chargor.

#### 5. Further Advances

The Security Trustee covenants with the Additional Chargor that it shall perform its obligations to make advances under the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement (including any obligation to make available further advances).

#### 6. Exclusion of Assets from Security

- 6.1 For each leasehold property (subject to Exclusions) (the "Excluded Property"), each Additional Chargor shall, upon request by the Security Trustee:
  - 6.1.1 apply for the relevant consent or waiver of prohibition or condition within 10 Business Days of the date of such request and shall use its reasonable endeavours to obtain that consent or waiver of prohibition as soon as possible;
  - 6.1.2 upon reasonable request, keep the Security Trustee informed of its progress in obtaining such consent or waiver; and
  - 6.1.3 forthwith upon receipt of such consent or waiver, provide the Security Trustee with a copy.

- 6.2 Immediately upon receipt of the relevant waiver or consent, the relevant Excluded Property shall stand charged to the Security Trustee (as trustee for the Secured Parties) under Clause 3 (*Fixed Security*). If required by the Security Trustee at any time following receipt of that waiver or consent, the relevant Additional Chargor will execute a further valid fixed charge in such form as the Security Trustee shall require.
- 6.3 There shall be excluded from the Security created by Clause 3 (*Fixed Security*) any Excluded Property held by an Additional Chargor until the relevant condition or waiver referred to in Clauses 6.1 and 6.2 (*Exclusion of Assets from Fixed Security*) has been satisfied and obtained. For the avoidance of doubt, no Excluded Property shall be excluded from the Security created by clause 4 (*Floating Charge*) by operation of this Clause 6.3 (*Exclusion of Assets from Fixed Security*).
- 6.4 If an Additional Chargor receives notice from a third party of its intention to bring proceedings against that Additional Chargor for the forfeiture of that Additional Chargor's leasehold property which is (a) and Excluded Property, and (b) subject only to the Security created by Clause 4 (*Floating Charge*) (a "Floating Charge Excluded Property"), the relevant Additional Chargor will:
  - 6.4.1 as soon as reasonably practicable (and in any event within two Business Days of receipt of such notice or becoming aware of such intention), inform the Security Trustee of the proceedings; and
  - 6.4.2 take all reasonable actions or which the Security Trustee may reasonably request to resolve any issue or dispute with such third party in such a way as to enable the Security created over such Floating Charge Excluded Property by this Deed to remain in place.

## 7. Power of Attorney

## Appointment and Powers

- 7.1 The Additional Chargor, by way of security, irrevocably appoints the Security Trustee, every Receiver and every Delegate severally and independently to be its attorney and in its name, on its behalf and as its act and deed, following the occurrence of an Event of Default that is continuing, to execute, deliver and perfect all documents and do all things which the attorney may consider to be required or desirable for:
  - 7.1.1 carrying out any obligation imposed on the Additional Chargor by this Deed; and
  - 7.1.2 enabling the Security Trustee or any Receiver or Delegate to exercise, or delegate the exercise of, any of the rights, powers, authorities and discretions conferred on it or him by or pursuant to this Deed or by law (including the exercise of any right of an absolute legal or beneficial owner of the Charged Property).

#### Ratification

7.2 The Additional Chargor shall ratify and confirm whatever any attorney does or purports to do pursuant to its appointment under Clause 13.1 (*Appointment and Powers*) of the Debenture.

#### 8. Further Assurance

- 8.1 The Additional Chargor shall, at its own expense, take whatever action the Security Trustee or any Receiver may reasonably require for:
  - 8.1.1 preserving, perfecting or protecting any Security Asset or the security constituted or intended to be constituted by this Deed over any Security Asset;

- at any time after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable, facilitating the realisation of any Security Asset; and/or
- 8.1.3 at any time after the security constituted by this Deed has become enforceable, facilitating the exercise of all rights, powers and remedies of the Security Trustee or any Receiver or Delegate provided by or pursuant to this Deed or by law in respect of any Security Asset,

including, without limitation, the execution of any transfer, conveyance, assignment or assurance of all or any of the assets forming part of, or intended to form part of, the Security Assets (whether to the Security Trustee or to its nominee(s)) and the giving of any notice, order or direction and the making of any registration which, in any such case, the Security Trustee may think expedient (acting reasonably) but such action being no more onerous than that required under the terms of this Deed.

#### 9. Notices

All Notices or demands to be given or made pursuant to this Deed shall be given or made in the manner set out in Clause 25 (*Notices*) of the Debenture. The Additional Chargor's address of service is that set out with its signature below.

### 10. Counterparts

This Deed may be executed in any number of counterparts, and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this Deed. Delivery of an electronic counterpart of this Deed by e-mail attachment or telecopy shall be an effective mode of delivery.

#### 11. Governing Law

This Deed and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law.

**IN WITNESS** of which this Deed has been entered into as a deed and is intended to be and is delivered on the day and year first before written.

# Schedule 1

# **Real Property**

# Schedule 2

# **Insurance Policies**

# Schedule 3

# **Specified Intellectual Property**

# Schedule 4

# **Specified Securities**

# Schedule 5

# **Specified Contracts**

# EXECUTION PAGE TO ACCESSION DEED

# THE ADDITIONAL CHARGOR

EXECUTED AS A DEED by	)	
[•]	)	
on being signed by two Directors [or	)	
a	)	
Director and the Company Secretary]	)	(Director)
pursuant to a resolution of the Board	)	
	)	
		(Director/Company Secretary)
Address:		
Email Address:		
For the Attention of:		
THE PARENT		
EXECUTED AS A DEED by	)	
CALEDONIA TLG MIDCO	)	
LIMITED	)	
on being signed by a Director	)	
	)	(Director)
Address:		
Email Address:		
For the Attention of:		

# THE SECURITY TRUSTEE

By: HSBC CORPORATE TRUSTEE COMPANY (UK) LIMITED

# **EXECUTION PAGE**

# **THE CHARGORS**

Executed as a deed by	)	PocuSigned by:
CALEDONIA TLG MIDCO LIMITED	í	
acting by:	)	Director <sup>484'8A436</sup>
Simon Hope	) }	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
and Harrison and American	<i>)</i>	Dirêctor
	,	Brector
Executed as a deed by	)	CocuSigned by:
CALEDONIA TLG BIDCO LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Diréctőir 43418A438
Simon.Hope	Ć	Nocustigned by
and Jonathan Lawson	í	
	)	Director conserve
Executed as a deed by	)	CocuSigned by:
THE LIBERATION GROUP LIMITED	, )	
acting by:	)	Direction 4-BA436
Simon Hope	) }	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
and Jonathan Langon	) )	Directorsusysaud
	,	Director
Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
THE LIBERATION GROUP UK LIMITED	)	•
acting by:	)	Dir CADEBA4BA1BA436
Simon Hope	)	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director CDE9F4DD
Executed as a deed by	)	PocuSigned by:
BUTCOMBE BREWING COMPANY	)	
LIMITED	`	CARERACRATRAMS
acting by:	)	Director A4341BA436
Simon Hope	)	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director Constitution
Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
BUTCOMBE BREWERY LIMITED	j .	
acting by:	)	Dir Can Fra4B41BA436
Simon Hope	)	— DocuSigned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	) }	
and Attitition. Parati	)	Director
	,	DITOUR

Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
A.S.B.M. LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dir GANEBA4B41BA436
Simon.Hope	)	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan.Lawson	Ó	
	í	Director
	,	
Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
A.S.B.O. LIMITED	· )	
acting by:	)	Directers A4B41BA436
Simon.Hope	)	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	Director CDB9E40D
	,	Director
Executed as a deed by	`	DocuSigned by:
A.S.B.T. LIMITED	) )	
acting by:	)	Dir 64165448418A436
	,	——DocuSigned by.
Simon. Hope	)	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director <sup>3</sup> CDB9F4DD
Executed as a deed by	`	DocuSigned by:
AURORA HOTEL LIMITED	)	
	)	DirectoralB41BA436
acting by:	)	Nocusigned by
Simon Hape	)	1906 153 153 1500 193
and Jonathan.Lawson	)	
	)	Direction *** Table 400
Executed as a deed by	`	
BATH STREET WINE CELLAR LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Director 42 Fd - RA436
	) \	DocuSigned by.
Simon Hope	)	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director
Executed as a deed by	,	DocuSigned by
BRASSERIE DU CENTRE LIMITED	) )	
acting by:	)	Dir SAREBA4B41BA436
Simon Hope	) \	Director  DocuSigned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
and Joharnan Famson	)	Director <sup>3</sup>
	)	Director
Executed as a deed by	`	Procesigned by:
CAESAREA HOTEL (JERSEY) LIMITED	) \	
	<i>)</i>	Pirota7-56-4-34 (Bau36
acting by:	)	Direction ABA BAAAB
Simon Hope	)	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Directoiscossesco

Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
CAFÉ DE PARIS (JERSEY) LIMITED	)	
	<i>)</i>	Direction 4B44BA436
acting by:	)	
Simon Hope	)	Bocdsigned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director CDR9F4DD
Executed as a deed by	)	
CHANNEL WINES & SPIRITS (JERSEY)	)	DocuSigned by:
LIMITED		
acting by:	)	Director A4BA4BA4BA
Simon.Hope	)	Nocustymed by
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Diréctoi (17395477)
	,	
Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
COSY CORNER (JERSEY) LIMITED	í	
acting by:	<u> </u>	<b>Бітелер</b> 48418А436
Simon.Hope	)	— DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	) )	
and Jouannail Lawson	)	Director de de la companya de la com
	,	Director
Executed as a deed by	`	
CRAIG STREET BREWING COMPANY	)	∠——DocuSigned by:
LIMITED	,	
	`	Direates A48418A436
acting by:	)	— DocuSigned by:
Simon Hope	)	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	- EASSESSC DROWADD
	)	Director Director
Evenue de la dead hay	`	——DocuSigned by:
Executed as a deed by	,	
DON INN (JERSEY) LIMITED	)	CADEDA AFIAADA 400
acting by:	)	Dir 649-6444418A436
Simon.Hope	)	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Dirêce 653 CDB9E4DD
T 1 11	,	
Executed as a deed by	)	Cocusigned by:
EVENSTAR LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dnectal ABA18A436
Simon.Hope	)	CocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson		
and appartuit handen	)	

Executed as a deed by	) Docusigned by:
EXETER HOTEL (JERSEY) LIMITED	)
acting by:	) Direction Add Hard Hard Hard Hard Hard Hard Hard Ha
Simon.Hope	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan.Lawson	)
	) Directorscorse400
Executed as a deed by	) OccuSigned by:
FARMERS INN LIMITED	)
acting by:	) Director Director
Simon Hope	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)
	) Direction CDB9E40D
Executed as a deed by	) DocuSigned by:
FIVE OAKS HOTEL LIMITED	
acting by:	Director Director
Simon Hope	DocuSiamed by.
and Jonathan Lawson	
	) Directoraconage 400
Executed as a deed by	DocuSigned by:
LAPWING (TRADING) LIMITED	
acting by:	) Director
Simon Hope	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	) (
	) Director
Executed as a deed by	DocuSigned by:
LA ROCQUE INN (JERSEY) LIMITED	) [
acting by:	Dir COLOR DA 4841BA436
Simon Hope	) Powysigned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	) (
	) Director
Executed as a deed by	PocuShyned by.
GREAT WESTERN HOTEL LIMITED	)
acting by:	) Director <sup>A4BA4BA</sup>
Simon.Hope	) —— Assusigned by
and Jonathan Lawson	) Director
Executed as a deed by	) DocuSigned by:
FORESTERS ARMS (JERSEY) LIMITED	)
acting by:	) Director
Simon Hope	) —— PocuSigned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	)
	Director

Executed as a deed by	)	Docusyned by.
GIMBELS (JERSEY) LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dir CODERA4B41BA436
Simon Hope	)	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director3CDB9F4DD
Executed as a deed by	)	— DocuSigned by.
GLOSTER VAULTS LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dne2058448418A436
Simon Hope	)	ToduSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	Director Cost Cost
Executed as a deed by	`	
GREAT UNION HOTEL (HOLDINGS)	)	— DocuSigned by.
LIMITED	,	
acting by:	``	DITECTOR
Simon Hope	)	— DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	) )	
and sometime. execution	)	Dirêctor3CDB9E4DD
Executed as a deed by	)	
HORSE & HOUND (JERSEY) LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Director
Simon Hope	)	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director CDB9F40D
Executed as a deed by	)	— Hocusigned by.
LA CAVE DES VINS LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dn 6005048418A436
Simon.Hope	)	PocuSigned by.
and Jonathan.Laws.on	)	
	)	Director CDB9F4DD
Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
LE HOCQ HOTEL LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dir COLORA 4B41BA436
Simon·Hope·····	)	Docusigned by
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director College 100

Executed as a deed by	)
MARY ANN PRODUCTS (JERSEY)	) PocuSigned by:
LIMITED	
acting by:	) Director <sup>44841BA436</sup>
Simon Hope	) Cocusianed by:
and Jonathan Lawson	<u> </u>
	) Direction Conservation
Everyted as a dead by	Pocusigned by.
Executed as a deed by	
MITRE HOTEL (JERSEY) LIMITED	) Discourage Page
acting by:	) Directoral BA436
Simon Hope	) Tocusigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)
	) Director: Classes Co
Executed as a deed by	DocuSigned by:
PARADE HOTEL (JERSEY) LIMITED	)
acting by:	Director <sup>436</sup>
Simon.Hope	) DocuSigned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	)
	Director
Executed as a deed by	DocuSigned by
PEIRSON (1971) LIMITED	
acting by:	Director
Simon Hope	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	<u> </u>
	) Direction CDB9E4DD
Executed as a deed by	DocuSigned by
PUFFIN NEWCO LIMITED	
acting by:	) Director
Simon Hope	Director  DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	
and Johathan Lawson	. AASSESSCOPPENDD
	) Direction CDB9E4DD
Executed as a deed by	DocuSigned by:
RED LION LIMITED	)
acting by:	) Dir COTOMABA 1BA 436
Simon.Hope	) DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)
	) Directoracobarado

Executed as a deed by	)	Docusigned by:
ROBIN HOOD (JERSEY) LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dir & 18A436
Simon. Hope	Ś	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	í	
	)	Director CDR9F4OD
	,	2 - Avendar
Executed as a deed by	)	Pocusigned by:
S.L. LIMITED	)	•••••••••••
acting by:	)	Director 4-54-58436
Simon. Hope	)	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan.Lawson	)	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
	)	Director
Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
ST. JOHNS HOTEL LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Director <sup>4484</sup> BA436
Simon.Hope	)	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Directoi
Executed as a deed by	)	— DocuSigned by:
STAG HOTEL (JERSEY) LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dir 2015 A4B41BA436
Simon.Hope	)	DocuSigned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Directoraconserano
Executed as a deed by	,	DocuSigned by:
NIGHTBRIDGE LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dir Schora48418A436
.Simon. Hape	)	CocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
and Juna Charl. Lawson	)	Director:
	,	Birctor
Executed as a deed by	)	— Pocusigned by.
SUSSEX HOTEL LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Director <sup>A4B4</sup> BA436
Simon.Hope	)	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director

Executed as a deed by  THE INDEPENDENT BREWING  COMPANY LIMITED  acting by:  Simon Hope	) Dire )	ocusigned by:  CTOSA4341BA438  ocusigned by:  CTOSA43841BA438
Executed as a deed by  THE POST HORN LIMITED  acting by: Simon. Hope	) ) Dire )	COOP COOP SECTOR
Executed as a deed by  TRAFALGAR HOTEL (JERSEY) LIMITED  acting by:  Simon Hope	)	ocuSigned by: ሲባርያ A4B41BA436 ocuSigned by: ያናርያ የCDB9E4DD
Executed as a deed by UNION INN (JERSEY) LIMITED acting by: Simon. Hope	) ) Dire )	ocusigned by:  ATERALBA BA438  CLUT  COUSigned by:  COUSIGNED STEVE400
Executed as a deed by  VICTORIA (VALLEY) LIMITED  acting by: Simon Hope  and Jonathan Lawson	) ) Dire	crusigned by. crosspeed by. crosspeed by.
Executed as a deed by  VICTORIA HOTEL (JERSEY) LIMITED  acting by:  Simon Hope  and Jonathan Lawson	) Dire ) .	ADEBA4B41BA436 ocuSigned by:

Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
WELLINGTON HOTEL LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	<b>Энгелиор</b> 4В41ВА436
Simon.Hope	)	DocuSigned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Dir 2405300B9F4DD
Executed as a deed by	)	
WESTS CINEMAS LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dir@@7648418A436
Simon Hope	)	PocuSigned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director CDR9F4DD
Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
A.E. SMITH & SON LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Director
Simon Hope·····	)	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan-Lawson	)	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
	)	Hiroctorscobseadd
Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
JOHN TREGEAR LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Diréctői <sup>4484188438</sup>
Simon Hope	)	Accustoned by
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director 1995-199
Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
VICTOR HUGO LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dir CAPERA4B41BA436
Simon.Hope	)	Porusigned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director CDB9F4DD
Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by.
LONGUEVILLE DISTRIBUTORS LTD	)	
acting by:	)	Director <sup>A4B41BA436</sup>
.Si.man.Hape	)	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director 1788-478
Executed as a deed by	)	
CITANN LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Direction-184436
Simon.Hope	)	TioduSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Directoiscusses

Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
SQUARE LIMITED	Ś	
acting by:	á	Director
Simon Hope	í	Docusioned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
and Arvertistic Artisterior	)	Direction 100 Bank 400
	,	Director
Executed as a deed by	)	— Post-Signed by.
LA ROCQUE ENTERPRISES LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Direct 55A4B41BA436
Simon Hope	Ó	Nocus Igned by
and Jonathan Lawson	Ś	
	)	Director Consessor
Executed as a deed by	)	
OLD COURT HOUSE HOTEL (ST. AUBIN)	)	— DocuSigned by:
1972 LIMITED	,	
acting by:	``	Dir GARERA4B41BA436
Simon Hope	)	— DocuSigned by:
	)	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	Direction
	)	Director
Executed as a deed by	)	
THE GUERNSEY BREWERY CO. (1920)	)	Docusiqued by.
LIMITED		
acting by:	)	Dir & CERA4B41BA436
Simon.Hope	)	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director <sup>3CDB9E4DD</sup>
Executed as a deed by	)	Docusigned by:
LES GARCONS LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Director4B44BA436
Simon.Hope	)	Docustioned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Dineutof: Coeresco
Executed as a deed by	)	— PocuSigned by.
HAUTVILLE LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Director <sup>A4BA</sup> 'BA438
Simon Hope	)	CoduSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director CDB 82400

Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
WHITE HART LIMITED	)	
acting by:	Ć	Dir GADEBA4B41BA436
Simon.Hope	Ś	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	Ś	
	, )	Directoraconserado
	,	
Executed as a deed by	)	DocuSigned by:
BUCKTROUT & COMPANY LIMITED	Ś	
acting by:	ì	Dir GADEBA4B41BA436
Simon Hope	)	——DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
and somether cawson	)	Dirêctor3cDB9E4DD
	)	Director
Executed as a deed by	`	CocuSigned by:
GUPPY'S HOLDINGS LIMITED	,	
	,	Dirét#85A4341BA436
acting by: Simon.Hope	,	Occasioned by
	)	
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Director CDEVELOD
Executed as a deed by	``	DocuSigned by:
GUPPY'S OF GUERNSEY LIMITED	,	
	)	Direction 48418A436
acting by:	)	— DocuSigned by:
Simon Hope	)	becausigned by.
and Jonathan Lawson	)	
	)	Direction CDB9F4DD
Executed as a deed by	,	DocuSigned by:
CAPTAINS HOLDINGS LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Dir CAREBA4B41BA436
Simon.Hope	,	Pocusigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	,	
and Adiracian ramsoft	)	
	)	Director
Executed as a deed by	)	
SHIP HOLDINGS LIMITED	)	
acting by:	)	Director <sup>A4BA1BA436</sup>
Simon.Hope	)	
and Jonathan.Lawson	)	
and Junathan Lawsun	)	Dinector: SDBVE4DD
	,	Director
Executed as a deed by	)	DecuSigned by.
DIVETTE HOLDINGS LIMITED	Ś	
acting by:	ì	Dir GATEBA4B41BA436
Simon.Hope	) }	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	) }	
MICO CANTAGONICAMONATION	) \	Director3CDB9E4DD
	,	DIECTOI

Executed as a deed by	)
GUERNSEY LEISURE COMPANY	DocuSigned by.
LIMITED	
acting by:	) Director Director
Simon.Hope	DocuSigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	)
	) Director*CDB9F4DD
Executed as a deed by	) Pocusigned by:
MARAIS HALL LIMITED	
acting by:	) Director 4-54-BA436
Simon Hope	) Too usigned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	
	) Director/Secretary
Executed as a deed by	)
THE LIBERATION PUB COMPANY	) CocuSigned by:
(GUERNSEY) LIMITED	
acting by:	) Director <sup>4841BA436</sup>
Simon Hope	) Docusioned by:
and Jonathan Lawson	
	) Director Director
Executed as a deed by	
THE LIBERATION PUB COMPANY	) CocuSigned by:
(JERSEY) LIMITED	
acting by:	) Director
Simon Hope	
and Jonathan Lawson	)
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\	) Director
	A

# THE SECURITY TRUSTEE

EXECUTED AS A DEED HSBC CORPORATE TO COMPANY (UK) LIMIT by its attorney/director	RUSTEE	) )	DocuSigned by:
Simon Lazarus		) )	2735862D5E034C4
in the presence of:			(Attorney/Director)
Witness signature: EBUD550021F73410 Witness name: Laura Lazaru			
Witness			
address:			
Witness Teacher			